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EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY01



KCT was founded by the City of Cape Town in 2003 to develop 
commercial, residential and community facilities in Khayelitsha. 

These developments help generate economic opportunities 
and uplift the lives of residents.
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CHAIRPERSON’S 
REPORT
Bulelwa Belu-Toni
Board Chairperson

Khayelitsha Community Trust Chairperson’s Report 
for the year ended 30 June 2018
The year under review has been characterised by exciting 

but difficult moments that forced the board to reflect on its 

commitment and resolved that “the KCT continues to be 

committed to the upliftment of Khayelitsha and its people”. 

Various strategies have been used to ensure that the Board 

together with the Executive Management have achieve the 

set objectives in order to realise this commitment. During the 

year under review the Board and its management has been 

busy with restructuring. 

We are proud to announce that in restructuring the KCT 

Board has been able to establish new Companies that will 

alleviate the challenges from the Trust and operate using 

the principles that will ensure that the shareholder yields 

ap¬propriate return on investment over time contributing to 

the sustainability of the Trust. 

This approach discharges the Trust from the day to day 

non-executive oversight responsibility thereby creating a 

fresh focus on the Trust’ projects. Drawing to the primary 

man¬date of the Trust and the upliftment in the people of 

Khayelitsha. 

I would like to take this opportunity and thank the executive 

Management for steering the organisation towards the right 

direction despite the challenges they are facing on the day 

to day operation. 

Taking this opportunity to also thank the Trustees for committing 

their time to the KCT organisation. The trustees performed a 

remarkable job in assisting the organisation to navigate 

best options in transforming the Trust to establishing vehicles 

that move the development forward whilst being profitable.  

Lastly but not least, extending words of thanks to all relevant 

stake¬holders in working closely with us during the year under 

re¬view.

Not to mention the City of Cape Town under the stewardship 

of Councillor Herron, we have overcome the challenge con-

fronting the Trust through its Housing subsidiary and resolved 

to revert in the development of 368 BNG houses as the first 

phase of implementation.  Tremendous progress has been 

made since this decision was undertaken. The capacitation 

of the trust has been implemented to ensure that this set 

target is achievable. 

KCT management has been in negotiations with potential 

investors to capitalise the remaining development and as¬-

sist with finalising the plans for the outstanding undeveloped 

sites where KCT has development rights. Various strategic 

partnerships have been formed to achieve this objective; 

the development of health care facility being one of the few 

examples. 

KCT group has been in search for a strategic partner for 

the acquisition of a section of the KCT mall in order to im-

prove the current mall to be in line with Khayelitsha residents’ 

wish¬es. The Khayelitsha communities request has been for 

the facility to remain competitive and attract feet for the 

benefit of the tenants. 

KCT group exercised a participative approach with the com-

munity of Khayelitsha through various consultation chan-

nels, whereby they confirmed that they are looking for¬ward 

to KCT delivering on its mandate. This will assist them with 

employment opportunities during and after construc¬tion 

of 368 housing units. Delivery on the approved plans will fur-

ther assist local entrepreneur in seizing business op¬portuni-

ties during and after construction. 

Young people of Khayelitsha continue to achieve in the 

midst of adversity, there is a youngster from Khayelitsha that 

has been selected on the Debate competition to represent 

South Africa in Turkey to adjudicate a similar competition. We 

have been able to assist her towards her trip; investing in fu-

ture plans for the community of Khayelitsha. Upon her return 

we will commence with a similar program so as to promote 

the culture of debating in Khayelitsha schools. 

KCT group looks forward to 2018/2019 financial year where 

immense implementation of the plans will commence. Sub-

sidiaries will recruit skilled personnel to work for the material-

ization of the set objectives. 

KCT is looking forward to creating employment oppor-

tuni¬ties and ensure the Khayelitsha Community benefits 

from the plans underway. 

.

Bulelwa Belu-Toni
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FROM THE CEO’S DESK

Introduction & Back-
ground

The past finan-

cial Khayelitsha 

Community Trust 

(KCT) encoun-

tered a few 

setbacks in 

its project im-

plementation 

targets. The new 

retail opportunity 

referred to as the 

mixed-used retail 

was earmarked to start 

trading in November 2018, 

however could not proceed due to a lease litigation matter 

raised by one of the retailers on the basis of exclusivity 

trading rights.

In the wake of KCT no longer being a municipality entity, thus 

no longer dependent on municipal grant funding for its op-

erations. The equity raising strategy the Trust embarked upon 

through selling a stake of the existing KCT Mall could not 

materialize as negotiations with the preferred equity partner 

had to be abandoned when the latter could not demon-

strate the ability to raise the necessary equity as per agreed 

shareholding structure.

On the other hand, the implementation of Phase 1 Housing 

stalled as both the Trust and the City of Cape Town Munici-

pality had to resolve the treatment of the R21 million Urban 

Settlements Development Grant (USDG) funding in the event 

of the product being changed from institutional subsidy 

housing to affordable housing. 

The aforementioned encounters have had a serious knock 

on effect on the Trust’s ability to deliver on its mandate as 

much is dependent on land release and the ability to raise 

working capital for finalization of project plans, capacitation 

of human resource deployment and submission of approval 

applications. 

Further, the ensuing report will demonstrate that corrective 

measures are being put in place to improve this bleak pic-

ture and accelerate the Trust’s ability to attain its goals and 

objectives. 

Investment instruments
KCT recently embarked on an organizational restructuring  

 process aimed at capacitating its own internal structures to 

ensure that the Trust is able to withstand forthcoming project 

challenges and that its underlying subsidiaries are able to 

trade in a manner that contribute to its long-term sustainability. 

This process on its own has not been without its challenges 

as various factors had to be carefully considered, i.e. the tax 

implications for KCT land transactions, the overhaul of human 

resource alignment, the registration of new entities, the recruit-

ment of new non-executive directors to various subsidiaries thus 

the conclusion of new Memoranda of Incorporation (MOIs), etc. 

Central to this challenge is KCT’s ability to raise its own capital 

resources beyond the restructuring process. The core business 

trades of the Trust rest within retail and housing developments 

which are driven through the KRetail and KHousing entities re-

spectively. The ultimate objective of the restructuring process is 

to ensure that these entities are strengthened to operate as a 

true business operations; completely independent of the Trust 

both in decision making and financial growth capabilities.  

Investment instruments  
KCT is in the process of looking for an equity partner and 

continues to engage potential investors who have an appe-

tite in Khayelitsha’s development. The immediate plan of the 

Trust is to ensure that an investor is secured to acquire up to 

49% of the existing KCT Mall and further demonstrate interest 

in the development of the newly planned Lifestyle Centre. 

The income generated will benefit the Trust in investing more 

on the human capital of the local community as well as in 

investing more on Khayelitsha economic development ini-

tiatives. 

Over and above selling off a stake in the KCT Mall which is 

currently valued at R333 million, the Trust is looking at imple-

menting more capital investment projects as means of gen-

erating more revenue. Notwithstanding the housing project 

to be reviewed below. KCT has entered into a 40-year Land 

Lease Agreement with a company known as Corevest for the 

establishment of a primary healthcare clinic; adjacent to it 

another land release transaction is to be entered into with 

a company known as Marang Health for the development 

of a 120-bed private hospital thus completing the medical 

precinct on a 3Ha piece of land. In both instances, the Pow-

er of Attorney to proceed with planning matters on a City 

of Cape Town land whereupon KCT has development rights 

has been issued. Further to this, the Site Development Plan 

and Subdivision Application for the private hospital have 

been approved. 
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In the midst of all these opportunities the overriding principle 

is to ensure economic empowerment of the local community 

not just through job creation but enterprise development 

and equity ownership as well.

Housing Update
Since the management of the KCT Mall was brought in-

house through the establishment of the Property Management 

Unit (PMU) tremendous strides have been achieved in both 

facilities management and reduced rental defaults. Since 

the take-over the collection rate has improved by more than 

30% which is quite remarkable considering how nervous 

and jittery the financier – RMB – was given the associated 

risk elements.  

The local community of Khayelitsha has direct benefit of no 

less than R5.9 mill ion annually through providing 

maintenance & repair services, security services provision, 

cleaning, waste management and pest control services. The 

KCT Mall further ensures local retailers are provided with 

leasing oppor tunit ies as wel l  and this has been 

complimented by the accommodation of local informal 

traders at a nominal monthly fee.  

Various promotional activities are taking place within the 

KCT Mall on a daily basis utilizing local events management 

companies. These activities are not limited to marketing of 

commercial products but also deal with awareness raising 

initiatives on a broader social development scale, e.g. health 

promotion, career development prospects, entrepreneurial 

skills development and other similar or related programs. 

Property Management Unit
After considerable delays that’ve been linked to land transfer 

and USDG repayment matters as alluded above, finally the 

roll-out of 368 Phase 1 units is set to take place during the 

second quarter of year-2019. Both the City of Cape Town and 

KCT have resolved to deliver institutional subsidy housing units 

as part of the Phase 1 typology. 

Progress to-date:
The Project Steering Committee has been formed comprising 

representatives from City of Cape Town, KCT, local community 

stakeholders, e.g. Khayelitsha Development Forum (KDF) and 

Ward Development Forum. The beneficiary administrator who 

will look at verifying qualifying beneficiaries has been appointed. 

A Community Liaison Officer who will interface with the community 

on various projects of the Trust has been appointed. 

The City has agreed to waive the USDG repayment of 

R11.6 million as soon as we deliver on state subsidized housing 

units. Further USDG funding application is being lodged with 

the City of Cape Town which will inject another approx. R10 

million into the project. 

Conclusion
Notwithstanding the fact that the Trust has once again been 

awarded an unqualified audit opinion, the major challenge 

for KCT is to deliver on its agreed development objectives. The 

outcomes of the organizational restructuring process must 

usher in a new era for KCT project performance outcomes 

as this is pivotal to redressing the depressing socio-econom-

ic challenges facing the Khayelitsha community.

On the same breadth one would like to express sincere 

gratitude to the KCT Board of Trustees for being so insightful 

and supportive to the efforts of the administration in driving 

these milestones. The morale within the organization is quite 

high as all personnel are optimistic that the sun shall rise 

where all the dreams shared above will one day, if not soon, 

see the light of the day. Finally, I would also like to thank all 

staff members, in particular management, for being able to 

weather the storm and keep focussed on broader organiza-

tional goals despite the daunting challenges and given the 

limited resources at everyone’s disposal. 

Mkhululi Gaula

Chief Executive Office
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Vision, Mission, Values and 
Objectives

The Trust’s strategy can be best summed up by the byline: simple, relatable, 
doable.

KCT strives to attract business and development partners who share its 
vision and values, as well as build relationships with investors who believe 
in its aim of developing and empowering communities. The Trust aims to 
deliver a diversified asset portfolio comprising commercial, residential, civic, 
educational, infrastructure and retail properties that generate annuity income 
to its beneficiaries. Its objective is to ensure that its properties are internally 
managed, increase in value and empower the community in which it operates. 

How value is measured

•    By providing an understanding of the Trust’s values based on the five 
pillars of the City of Cape Town’s Integrated Development Plan (IDP), 
which are:

•  By alleviating Khayelitsha-specific needs and aspirations, 
     which are:

• Addressing spatial inefficiency

• Improving available facilities and security, as well as the quality of the  
 urban environment

• Creating economic opportunities – including equity participation,   
 ownership and new ventures

• Ensuring socio-economic growth and development

•  Creating a sustainable and balanced asset portfolio to provide the 
community with a long-term source of income (generation) and investment 
(opportunities)

• Enabling job creation, training, learning, internships, entrepreneurial  
 and industrial business opportunities

SAFE CITY

OPPORTUNITY
CITY

WELL-RUN
CITY

CARING
CITY

INCLUSIVE
CITY
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Values
accountability

integrity

people
centric transparency

conduct

honesty

personal growth

success

collaborate

trust
khayelitsha growth

organisation
commitment

openness

rules
integrity

quality

faith

Khayelitsha
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Values
BACKGROUND

KCT was founded by the City of Cape Town in 2003 to 
develop commercial, residential and community facil-
ities in Khayelitsha. These developments help generate 
economic opportunities and uplift the lives of residents. 
The Trust, previously a municipal entity, now trades as a 
non- profit organisation with public benefit organisation 
tax status. A LAA entered into between the City and KCT, 
allows KCT to assist with the KBD development and hold 
equity in associated developments, the returns of which 

are used in other developments.

VISION

KCT’s vision is to empower the Khayelitsha community 
through the promotion of social and economic devel-

opment.

MISSION

KCT’s mission is to advance the KBD by developing com-
mercial, residential and communal facilities.

OBJECTIVES

• To raise funding for top structure for 368 housing units

•  To appoint legal and tax advisers to review KCT 
structures for development focused and tax efficient 
group structure for future developments

•  To fulfill the conditions set by the City Council in the 
approved Spatial Development Framework (“SDF”)

•  To appoint a  professional team to finalise feasibility 
and plans for the Khayelitsha Mixed use retail centre 
(“KMURC”)

•  To engage 3rd parties to improve functionality of the 
retail centre

•  To develop partnerships with relevant service 
providers and stakeholders 

•  To catalyse acquisition of funds in contribution to KCT 
financial self-dependence & ultimate sustainability

For elaborative status on the above outlines objectives, 
please refer to the performance report section of this 
report.

KEY VALUE PROPOSITION

• KCT’s strategic partnerships with key stakeholders

•  The community directly benefits from the 
improvements to the land, as well as associated  
transactions that are aimed at benefiting the 
community through social and economic 
empowerment

• The KBD has a very strong multi-sectoral impact

•  Additionally to the trustees that were originally 
appointed by the City, the community is also 
represented on the board of trustees by elected 
members of the KDF. Members of the KCT and a City 
of Cape Town multidisciplinary committee represent 
the local authority at operational and executive 
levels. The committee helps to streamline planning 
and communication, and alleviate bureaucracy

• Preferential arrangement: Immediate access to land  
 at preferential rates

•  In addition to KCT’s status as a community trust, it 
has also put in place sound corporate governance; 
therefore transparency is key to its operations and 
planning
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KCT was founded by the City of Cape Town in 2003 to develop 
commercial, residential and community facilities in Khayelitsha. 

These developments help generate economic opportunities 
and uplift the lives of residents.
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1 Land transactions  |  Contingent income from 
Investment companies  |  Grant funding.

ORGANISATIONAL OVERVIEW AND BUSINESS MODEL

2 Property and facilities   |  Management 
Development fees  |  Management fees

Income Sources 

3 Leasing income  |  Promotions

4 Housing sales and Rentals

The Trust’s long-term sustainability is dependent on the performance of its investment companies. Historically, it has 
experienced operational and sustainability challenges with its subsidiaries KBD Management and KBD Housing, but has 
overcome a number of these, and is proud to report that phase one of the housing project is firmly on track, with phase 

two in planning. This will result in an improved income stream for KBD Housing from the sale of housing units 
as well as rental income.

KBD Retail, which owns the KCT Mall (through leasehold improvements) continues to be self-sustainable with the Mall 
enjoying full occupancy. This has generated surpluses and additional income, which are controlled 

by means of legal agreements with the financier.
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PROJECTS  

 HOUSING PROJECT  
 KHAYELITSHA CBD

1. Background

Through the Land Availability Agreement (LAA) that was en-

tered into between the Khayelitsha Community Trust (KCT) and 

the City of Cape Town, KCT has development rights over a 22Ha 

piece of land for housing development purposes. The KCT sub-

sidiary – Khousing (PTY) Ltd – is responsible for implementing 

the housing mix of typologies within the Khayelitsha CBD. 

Currently, only the bulk infrastructure and internal services have 

been installed on 6 hectares marking Phase 1 of the housing 

development through the Urban Settlements Development 

Grant (USDG) funding. Since the process encountered unfor-

tunate delays due to land transfer matters and the recom-

mendation to change the housing product from institutional 

subsidy housing to affordable housing units. This attracted 

adverse policy implications to the effect that the R11.6 million 

USDG must therefore be repaid unless any of the state subsidy 

instruments is to be utilized as end-user finance. The matter has 

since been resolved and Phase 1 development will comprise 

368 institutional housing subsidy units. 

 
2. Progress to-date

As above mentioned, the services have been installed 

excluding the electrical services due to risks that are asso-

ciated with safety of underground electrical cables. Negoti-

ations are underway to apply for another USDG funding to 

cover the installation of electrical services and ESKOM had 

already indicated that the project will be gazette for in the 

2019/2020 financial year. 

Other key milestones include the following:

The establishment of the Project Steering Committee (PSC) 

which is inclusive of representatives from City of Cape Town, 

KCT, local ward committees, etc.

The appointment of the beneficiary administrator               

responsible for verifying qualifying beneficiaries and liaise 

with the City’s Allocations Committee for final approval of 

the beneficiary list.

The fact that the formulation of the Business Plan and the 

Operational Plan has commenced due for submission to 

the City by end of the year and approval is expected in 

March 2019. 

The appointment of the main contractor as soon as the 

business plan is approved and funding made available for 

project implementation.

The construction of the 368 units envisaged to take place 

by June 2019. 

3. Subsequent development plans

TThe 368 Phase 1 units will all be single residential units and 

the City has already indicated that in promoting optimal 

land use management only densification layout plans will 

be approved. It is on this basis that KHousing has already be-

gun with engaging developers that are amenable to build-

ing medium density units. 

ILLUSTRATIVE DESIGNS

In essence, this is the type of development planning or typol-

ogies the City would like us to pursue as it is also enshrined in 

the City’s latest development guidelines. The roll-out of sub-

sequent phases will comprise of various financing models, 

e.g. rent-to-buy scheme, outright purchase and the Finance 

Linked Individual Subsidy Programme (FLISP) model. 

KHousing is already in discussion with a group of housing 

professionals called Zakhe/VBZ Projects for production of 

a development scheme that’ll cover the balance of the re-

maining 11Ha piece of land. It is envisaged that a memo-

randum of understanding (MOU) will be entered into both 

parties as soon as preliminary designs that are in line with 

City policy framework have been agreed to. 
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4. Targeted inhabitants

Phase 1 is targeted to accommodate Khayelitsha residents 

who qualify on the basis of earning a jointly monthly income 

of up to R3500, the planned subsequent phases will be open 

to those who qualify for bond registration irrespective of their 

background. 

On the other hand, discussions are ongoing with the De-

partments of National Human Settlements’ Military Veterans 

Unit for accommodation of 100 military veterans through the 

housing subsidy allocated for the said grouping. 

Khayelitsha is in need of rental stock for those who do not 

qualify for subsidy units and not being eligible for bonds; 

though they do have a source of income. Efforts will be 

made to accommodate this market. 

5. Conclusion

The area of Khayelitsha is predominantly filled with informal 

settlements dwellings though there is a sizeable number of 

people who chose to reside out of Khayelitsha due to a lack 

of decent quality housing. It is therefore imperative that the 

type of housing development that KHousing promotes be 

aimed at delivering settlements of uncompromised social 

acceptance where people and children can live, play and 

pray.
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Map 2: Residential Development (Artist’s Impression)

The Project Steering Committee has been formed comprising representatives 
from City of Cape Town, KCT, local community stakeholders, e.g. Khayelitsha 
Development Forum (KDF) and Ward Development Forum.

The beneficiary administrator who will look at verifying qualifying beneficiaries 
has been appointed.

6. Engineering Services 

Bulks and Links

There is enough existing bulk water and electrical infrastructure to service the 
entire KCBD area. The existing bulk sewer is only enough to services the existing 
completed development including the phase 1 housing. Developments beyond 
the phase 1 housing will require the upgrading of the sewer treatment plant 
which is planned for completion in 2018. Bulk Electrical supply is provided via the 
8MW substation installed along the Steve Biko Road.

The bulk road is served by the Walter Sisulu Drive which acts as the main transport 
route through the CBD and will be upgraded in future to become part of the City’s 
ITR network. The road reserve is already fixed at 25m along the northern entry 
point but where it enters the mixed use precincts area, adequate space exists for 
the implementation of a 36m wide road reserve which can accommodate the 
full IRT infrastructure. This width determination will set the cadastral boundaries 
for the adjacent properties. Mini bus taxis provide a service along other roads 
including Steve Biko and Govan Mbeki. The PRASA rail line and station provide 
the other public transport function.

Map 3: Bulk Services Plan

Internal Services

Internal water, sewer and storm water services have been installed for phase 
one of the housing development and handed over to the City of Cape Town. 
The electrical reticulation will be installed closer to the construction of the top 
structure.

PROJECTS  
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7. Preconditions for implementation

The following are the preconditions for the implementation of the development:

Precondition Status Responsibility

Conclusion of the JV Agreement Concluded ED/K-Housing

Conclusion of the Development Agreement Concluded ED/K-Housing

Transfer of the land into K-Housing name In Progress K-H Housing

Conclusion of the Business Plan Concluded ED

Securing of Development Funding In Progress ED/K-Housing

Issuing of the Section 137 Certificate Concluded ED/CoCT

Securing of subsidy funds (if applicable) In Progress ED/K-Housing/CoCT/PGWC

8. SWOT Analysis
The table below looks at the SWOT of the development. At a macro level, the development provides a unique opportunity to 
undo inadequate and inequitable planning and investment by the previous dispensation and create a new CBD that serves 
the need of the entire community. This is a landmark project that could be replicated elsewhere in the country and continent. 

Strengths Weaknesses

• Existing adequate market demand (Ownership & rental) • Predominantly low income area

•    Large Investment made                                                      
(Retail, Health, Public Transport, Government services etc.) • Poor perception of the area

• Adequate bulk infrastructure (Electrical, Water and Roads) • Poor delivery track record

• Installed internal engineering services • Low consumer education

• All regulatory approvals in place • Small stand sizes

• Solid regulatory framework in place (KCBD/KSDF/KHSDP) • Low skill pool

• Live, work and play environment

Opportunities Threats

• Young and growing population • Unrealistic community expectations

• Most of the residents want to remain in the area • Political contestation

• Planned mobility corridor (Integrated Rapid Transport link) • Competing developments

•  Potential Transport Oriented Development beneficiary 
(Station upgrade) • Poor community engagement plan

• Rapid Increase in income levels • Inadequate bulk sewer

• Diversity of product offering • Failure to secure subsidy funding

•  Potential to access Socio economic development            
subsidies • Lack of community buy in

9. Post Implementation Institutional Arrangements

A structure, framed around the City Improvement District concept, is to be set up in order to look after the investment post 
implementation. The main stakeholders to the structure will be as depicted in the table below:

Entity Role Function

City of Cape Town Land Owner
Regulatory 
Authority

Management of public environment and the 
sports and cultural precinct

Khayelitsha Community Trust Property owner Management of the Commercial precinct

Rental landlords Property owners Management of the rental units

Community Users and labour Maintenance of Point of Sale. Security
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10.  Conclusion

The development offers a unique and strategic opportunity due to its location, plans, existing infrastructure as well as its 
readiness for implementation. There is an existing market that exceeds the current capacity and the potential to increase 
the units to 1700, which will be in line with the KSDF. We believe that our product offering is packaged for the best market fit 
and can serve as a catalyst for future quality housing provision in the area. The study indicates that there is a huge demand 
(61%) for rental market especially in the LSM 5-7 bracket. This offers a great opportunity for a quality Social and Affordable 
Rental housing product. The mid-case effective demand scenario indicates that we should be able to capture at least 
40% of this market. Given that most of the current residents want to remain in the area, a bonded housing component is 
important as it will provide a sense of permanency to the community.

PROJECTS  



The KCT Mall, a major asset of Khayelitsha Community Trust, is the heart of Khayelitsha CBD. 

The KCT Mall is favourable positioned in close proximity of public transport, SASSA Offices, 

Home Affairs Offices, Magistrate Court, Khayelitsha District Hospital, Harare Police Station, 

Community Multi-Purpose Building and Sivivava Building. KCT Mall consisting of 19326m² 

lettable and comprising of 57 shops. The Mall is highly successful boosting with 100% 

occupied since in its inception in 2005. We proactively negotiate Tenants’ lease renewals 

to ensure that we improve and sustain our rental income. We currently have a waiting list 

of 25 businesses waiting for suitable vacant retail space for occupancy.

The annual income growth of KCT Mall illustrated below shows a gradual increase 

year-on-year.

R 4500 000

20182016 2017

Khayelitsha Business
District Retail Progress
KCT Mall
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KCT Mall’s operations are managed by a Centre Management Team comprising of
 a Centre Manager who is supported by an Administrative Assistant (Contract Worker) 

and a Facilities Officer who is supported by a Handyman (Contract Worker). 
The Centre Management Team is supervised by KCT’s Property Portfolio

 Manager who is reports to the CFO.

Chief Financial
Officer

Property 
portfolio
manager

Facilities
Officer

Office
Assistance
(Contract
 Worker)

Handyman
Officer

(Contract
 Worker)

Intern
(False Bay
 College)

Centre 
Mnagement

Property
Administrator

The PMU has successfully been operating for a full year as from 31 July 2018.  The PMU has to maintain KCT 

Group’s vision and strategy that aims to deliver operational and continuous improved service by integrating 

Property Management
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KCT business, operations and environmental issues to 

ensure the functionality, safety and efficiency of the 

KCT Mall’s operational environment is sustained. Our 

MDA system training and the competency we developed 

in property management enables the Unit to operate 

independently and aligned to best practice. The Unit 

has the capacity and competence to compete with 

other property groups in the open market.

The twelve-month direct interaction and consistent 

engagement with our Tenants on their rental account 

queries matured into solid relationships, growth and 

development of the Unit. In an effort to align the Unit 

to our brand promise, we introduced a “meet and 

greet” approach of our Tenants to get to know them 

better and their accounts personnel we regularly deal 

with. The credit control function of the PMU is a one of 

the key performance areas of the PMU therefore, we 

strive to minimize Tenants’ arrears. Rental arrears have 

declined to around an average of 6% which is attribut-

ed to a hands-on approaches in resolving rental and 

recoveries queries that are misunderstood and not 

paid by some Tenants.

We have also established relationships with City Of 

Cape Town Utility Billing Division and Eskom on queries 

to ensure long standing cooperation when needed. 

During the period of 1 July 2017 to 30 June 2018, we 

have made a substantial saving of R1 008 767.00 in 

managing our own rental administration.

Training and Development
Our Intern from False Bay College is receiving ongo-

ing in-house training and supervision by our Proper-

ty Administrator on the MDA system to manage the 

Creditors profile for her tertiary development. We im-

plemented a segregation and approval procedures 

that entails signing-off of on correctness and quality 

of our invoices, recommendations and reports.

On 1 June 2018 we appointed Mr Zukhanye Mbunge 

as the Facilities Officer for KCT Mall. He is responsible 

for facilities management operations while forming a 

critical part of the Centre Management Team in man-

aging KCT Mall.

On 13 September 2018, we provided training to our Centre 

Management Team on MDA Facilities Management mod-

ule. Our goal is to have a fully functional and integrated 

Properties and Facilities Management Unit by end of De-

cember 2018 that will be equally comparable with large 

Property Groups. This enables us to grow our portfolio 

primarily for the new developments in Khayelitsha CBD.

Facilities Management
We have adopted a process approach to produce de-

sired outcomes of our workflow. The scope of the facility 

management activities, processes and workflows are 

monitored to keep the entire KCT Mall its communal fa-

cilities, supporting infrastructure, utility systems, parking 

lots, roads, drainage structures and grounds in optimal 

functional conditions. 

The goals of our various maintenance programs include 

remaining cognisant of the following:

• Reduce capital repairs

• Reduce unscheduled shutdowns and repairs

• Extend equipment life, thereby extending facility life.

• Realize life-cycle cost savings, and

• Provide safe, functional systems and facilities that 

meet the design intent.

KCT Mall’s maintenance Contractors are 95% Khayelit-

sha based business. To maintain KCT Mall in an accept-

able and sustainable condition, our Service Providers’ 

outputs are measured on performance standards pre-

determined and agreed upon in their service contracts. 

The Facilities Officer monitors daily, weekly and monthly 

performance and engage Service Providers on queries 

and successful completions of tasks. The Centre Man-

ager continuously engages Tenants on the queries, 

compliance and awareness drives while maintaining a 

24/7 communication line with all Tenants, Service Pro-

viders and Management.

Our service level agreements are policed to ensure that 

our Service Providers deliver on:-

• Committed response and resolution mechanism to  

 reduce incidents

• Perform maintenance tasks at a convenient time to  

 ensure minimal business disruption.

• Adhere and support governance and risk management  

 (SHEQ compliance)

• Supplier relationship delivers business and client value.

• Support KBD Retail to improve its results and service  

 levels through the use of technology and FM best  

 practices methodology.

Local Economic Development
The maintenance we outsource is embodied in KCT 

Group’s vision and mission to strive to promote social 

and economic empowerment through job creation 

at our facility. We initiated Labour-only contracts with 

Khayelitsha based Contractors and Service Providers 

by agreements, provide them with material sourced 
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Local Economic Development           Cost 

July 2017 R423 107.25

August 2017 R401 757.25

September 2017 R415 652.41

October 2017 R404 650.06

November 2017 R427 089.47

December 2017 R772 806.82

January 2018 R500 413.11

February 2018 R573 009.32

March 2018 R578 470.46

April 2018 R454 390.98

May 2018 R470 632.43

June 2018 R557 550.43

Total R597 9529.98

INTEGRATED REPORT 2018

by ourselves. We also promote, assist and encourage the development of emerging and poor resourced Con-

tractors by providing them support that enable them to perform maintenance work. Our database of Khayelit-

sha based Contractors is regularly updated and maintained to allow us flexibility and accessibility of a wide 

range of trade disciplines, general Contractors and Service Providers.

Costs of maintenance benefitting Local Khayelitsha Entrepreneurs for the reporting period was 
R5 967 730.88.
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Sustainability 
Sustainability is not a nice-to-have but rather a mindset that we promoted awareness on throughout the Mall’s 

operations. We implemented best practices in water, waste, energy, and overall environmental sustainability at 

KCT Mall during the reporting period. We recognised that proper management of our energy, natural resources and 

waste has a substantial effect on our economic and environmental performance therefore we have aligned 

our operations to SANS 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems.

Water Restriction Initiates
In an effort to support water restrictions, we proactively drew up and distributed awareness notices during the 

various phases of water restrictions. We further reduced our drinking water outlets; garden taps were shut down 

and detected water leaks repaired.

We installed 4 x 10 000 litre water tanks in close proximity of our toilet blocks to capture rain water from our 

gutters when it rains. We also installed 6 well points. These installations operates in tandem with the water tanks 

for flushing toilets and urinals. Fresh clean drinkable water will remain accessible at the wash hand basins in 

all toilets.

We assigned extra duties to our Security Guards and Cleaning Staff to identify and report any misuse or 

i r regular water usage practices

Waste Management
In an effort to reduce our operating cost resulting from reduced waste, this operation has been outsourced

Waste generated at KCT Mall is collected and then sorted on site into recyclable and non-recyclable materials 

before being diverted to landfills including correct disposal of fluorescent tubing. The recyclable waste is an 

income generator for the service provider.

Energy Saving Initiative
We retrofitted all of its public toilets, passages, retail open area and parking areas with Light Emitting Diodes 

(LEDs). The Centre Management has also engaged with Tenants to reduce their energy consumption. In order 

to save on costs, we managed the retrofit project in-house.

Environmental Management                   

The open areas, flower beds and gardens are maintained with water sourced from well points on site. We con-

tinuously improving energy efficiencies and implementing water saving and we are exploring solar energy 

generators to replace our costly energy sources.

R 100 000

R 200 000

R 300 000

R 400 000

R 500 000

R 600 000

R 700 000

R 800 000

R 900 000

Sep-17Jul -17 Aug -17 Oct-17 Nov -17 Dec -17 Jan-17 Feb -17 Mar -17 Apr -17 May-17 Jun -17

Financial Chart
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KCT Mall has a healthy Tenant mix that provides Shopper with a variety of products and services to choose from. 
The graphs below illustrates are Tenant mix that have been adequately supporting the needs of our Shoppers.

47%

9%

3%

32%

9%
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Sub-Major
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Regional

National

International
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14%

FAS - Fashion

HD - Home & Decor
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FIN  - Financial Institutions

SS - Specialised Services
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Operational framework of the PMU

Operational Plan

The PMU has the capacity to manage KCT Group assets internally through proactive training that commenced in May 2017. 

The activation and readiness for the transfer of functions performed by Hermans & Roman was done on 30 June 2017. The 

operations for the PMU continue as listed below:

1. Lease Agreement Management.

2.  Issuing of monthly tax invoices to all Tenants to reflect the basic rental charges, operating costs and any related recoveries 

such as electricity, municipal services and rates.

3.  The collection of Gross Rentals from all Tenants as well as all related recoveries, such as electricity, Tenants’ share of 

municipal services.

4. The execution of Credit Control procedures:

5. The execution of Debtors Control procedures:

6. Accounts Control:

7. Compile management reports:

8.  Administer an up-to-date filing system of all transactions for audit purposes and interact with Leasing Agent and Centre 

Management on Tenants’ liaison activities.

The PMU is considered to be a key Operations Unit of KCT.

Creditors
Control

Debtors
Control

Accounts
Control

Issuing 
of monthly 
invoices

Collection
of gross 
rentals

Lease 
Agreement 

Management

MDA

Creditors
Control
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Our general rule is to assist our poor resourced 
entrepreneurs

1. Coceka Pest Control: - KCT assisted the owner of Coceka 
Pest Control by encouraging him to acquire compliant 
registration as a Technician to perform pest control services. 
Our business provided him with the necessary information 
to attend a practical training program at the Pest 
Management Academy. Upon attended a 3-day training 
session which tested his prior competencies in pest control, 
weed control and rodent eradication & control. The training 
program enabled him to register as a trainee Pest Control 
Technician at the Department of Agriculture for ultimately 
acquiring a P Registration certificate. During the reporting 
period, he was KCT Mall’s Pest Control Service Provider. He 
moved onto tendering for the Pest Control Services with 
other Clients to develop his business.
2. Snqoblie Holdings: - Were awarded a labour-only 
painting project to Snqobile Holdings to paint the exterior 
of the Security Tower of KCT Mall. This poor resourced 
contractor only had the skill to paint. We provided him 
with all the paint, paint brushes & rollers, drop sheets, 
scaffolding, safety harnesses, hardtop helmets, ladders, 
etc. to successfully complete his project. Yet another local 
entrepreneurship development embarked under the 
auspices of KCT.
3. Vulthuba Construction: - This contractor was awarded 
a painting project. We could gather that he had the skill to 
paint although he could not produce a proper quotation. 
We noted that he had no standard method of measuring 
up the painting work intent. We assisted him and provided 
him the painting quantities. We further took him through the 
steps of preparing a computer-generated quotation with 
the quantities measured up on site. He had no cashflow 
for purchasing painting material, nor did he have painting 
tools and equipment. We assist him with all his requirements 
to produce a quality finished painting job. When he finished 
the project, we assisted him a computer-generated format 
of an Invoice to that could help him in future.
4. The 40 informal traders at KCT Mall is provided 
overnight storage for their goods they sell. This provision has 
enabled them to avoid paying daily transport cost to cart 
their goods to and from KCT Mall. The informal traders have 
since become part of the KCT Mall Trading community

KCT Mall Local
 Entrepreneurs
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KCT EVENTS
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Fire breakout in Khayelitsha October 2018

A devastating fire that occurred in the informal settlement of Silver Town, Khayelitsha, and after an extensive assessment 

was undertaken, the City of Cape Town city’s disaster risk management center confirmed that 342 structures had been 

destroyed, displacing 1355 people. 

The South African Social Services Agency (SASSA) provided humanitarian relief. The Gift of the Givers teams were also in 

Khayelitsha, arranging meals for the victims of the blaze. The event was embraced with Khayelitsha Development Forum 

(KDF) Cllr Mngxunyeni as Sub-council 10 Chairperson were part of the event.

Khayelitsha Community Trust; working closely with Disaster Management and SASSA to avoid duplication Gift of the Givers 

contributed towards a R2 million aid package to intervene with the following where necessary: provision of hot meals, 

bottled water, blankets, new clothing, school uniforms, stationery packs, mattresses, towels, hygiene packs, food parcels, 

plastic utensils and building material.” 

Khayelitsha Community Trust and Women with Integrity OLDIES EVENT Celebration 2018

Khayelitsha Community Trust (KCT) in collaboration with Women with Integrity (WWI) hosted a celebration for South African 

residents who were 80 years and above of age.

The celebration was held on the 15 September 2018 at Look Out Hill in Khayelitsha; between 11am and 17h00.The lunch for 

the senior citizens was held to acknowledge the importance and contributions of the elderly in the community. They were 

honored, cherished and loved by all the members of the community. They were awarded with gifts comprising of socks, 

men hats, handkerchiefs, woman scarves and goodies. The oldies were grateful to the festivities and requested that these 

celebrations be annual. The Khayelitsha Community Trust has committed to annually sponsor Women with Integrity (WWI) 

in hosting the Oldies Celebrations.
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 Children Centre - Khayelitsha 
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Lidokuhle
 Children Centre - Khayelitsha 

Lidokuhle Children Centre _ Khayelitsha 

Ms. Pamela Kulashe the CEO of Lindokuhle SafeHouse approached KCT seeking a formal structure whereby she is able to 

accommodate children that are orphaned and birthed at the Department of Correctional Services.

Ms. Kulashes’ vision is to provide a home for the abandoned and abused children of Khayelitsha. South African Social 

Services Agency utilizes her facility to place children whom are victims of neglect which are rescued through the system 

within the community. Further SAPS also utilizes her facility to place “lost children” or displaced children that are reported at 

the Khayelitsha Police stations. 

Khayelitsha Community Trust is pleased to be a stakeholder in such a meaningful project; in catering to future leaders of our 

society.  KCT has pledged to support this programme as one of their corporate social responsibilities. On the 27 November 

2018; the KCT Mall a subsidiary to Khayelitsha Community Trust hosted a braai at the facility and handed out Christmas 

goodies bags, leaving heartfelt smiles on the children’s faces. 

Wishing Ms. Kulashe all the best in the sustainability of this project. 



STAKEHOLDERS

The KCT has committed to working with, forming and maintaining inclusive relationships with its stakeholders, which are:

• The City of Cape Town (Founder)

• The Khayelitsha community

• The Khayelitsha Development Forum

• Financiers and investors

• Existing business partners and tenants

• Service providers

• All spheres of government

Stakeholders are acknowledged as being vital to fulfilling its mission.

Who Why we engage How we engage Impact Influence 

City of Cape Town  
(Founder)

• To extend reach and influence 
• Vested interest
•  Gateway to the support of the 

community 

•  Representation in 
various forums 

• Ad hoc meetings 

Moderate  
to high

Keep informed and 
two-way communication 
channel

Khayelitsha  
Community

•  To extend reach and influence
•   To maintain and strengthen 

relations with the community 

•  Representation in 
various forums 

• Ad hoc meetings
•  Annual General 

Meeting

Moderate  
to high

Keep informed and  
two-way communication 

Khayelitsha  
Development  
Forum

•  To extend reach and influence 
To comply with public  
participation policy

•  Quarterly 
meetings

•  Representation in 
various forums

High Keep informed and 
two-way communication 
channel

Financiers and 
Investors 

• To provide greater exposure •  Transactional 
deals for various 
projects

High Keep informed and  
two-way communication

Existing business 
partners

•  To extend reach and influence • Ad hoc meetings High Keep informed and  
two-way communication

Tenants • To extend reach • Ad hoc meeting
•  E-mail and  

newsletters
• Courtesy call

Moderate  
to low

Keep informed and 
two-way communication 
channel 

Service Providers •  To ensure that service 
providers assist in delivering 
quality services 

•  Supply chain 
management 
procedures 
applied

•  Empowerment  
strategy applied

Moderate  
to low

Keep informed

All spheres  
of government

•  To extend reach and influence
•  To provide exposure to the 

public sector 
•  To positively influence 

governance

Ad hoc meetings Moderate  
to low

Keep informed and  
establish two-way  
communication channel
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POWER
INFLUENCE

KHAYELITSHA BUSINESS DISTRICT

Keep satisfied
Keep informed

           STAKEHOLDER ANALYSIS

Manage closely

Keep informed and establish  
two-way communication channel
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Enterprise-wide risk management
The primary objective of risk management is to identify and to manage the uncertainties that may prevent the KCT Group 

from achieving its strategic and operational business objectives. The risks facing KCT group and its operations result from fac-

tors both external and internal to the organisation.

Risk management protects and adds value to the KCT Group and its stakeholders through supporting the organisations’ 

objectives by:

• Providing a framework for an organisation that enables future activity to take place in a consistent and controlled manner

•  Improving decision making, planning and prioritisation by comprehensive and structured understanding of business activi-

ty, volatility and project opportunities / threats

• Contributing to more efficient use of capital and resources

• Protecting and enhancing assets and the organisation’s image

• Developing and supporting people and the organisation’s knowledge base

• Optimising operational efficiency

Approach

In order to understand the significant risks facing KCT Group, our approach sought to identify the most significant inherent 

risks facing the Group.

Our methodology is based on the principle that:

• Trustees and Executive management are active participants in the risk identification and assessment process.

•  A facilitated series of discussions is the most effective manner to identify critical risks and risk areas that will need to be 

addressed through the activities of Internal Audit and Management.

•  Management uses a risk register as a tool to manage risks. Management regularly reviews the impact on the residual risk 

that remains as risk response strategies and controls take effect
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RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES
The Trust continues to maximum the benefits of having in place a group structure that has not been duplicated anywhere 
else in the country. Through the forged relations with the private sector, local, provincial and national governments as well as 
the Khayelitsha stakeholders, the KCT Group is able to access various opportunities. Reflecting on the Trust’s current position 
provides a critical opportunity to assess internal and external factors that offer opportunities yet pose risks to development. 

Opportunities:
• Flexibility of KCT structure as a development partner to both private and public sector 
• Prominent land position to which KCT has development rights
• Less rigidity in decision-making as KCT is not bound by municipal legislation
• Accessibility to Khayelitsha community and other stakeholders
• Ability to extend its mandate in the future to working outside the boundaries of the Khayelitsha CBD

Risks:
• Delays in land transfers
• Political interference
• Prolonged decision-making processes, both internally and by the City Council
• Relationship challenges with stakeholders
• Lack of funding
• Downturn in the economy which impacts the market and supplies

UNDERSTANDING
THE ORGANISATION

• Mission
• Business Plan  

strategic Objectives
• Tactical Objectives
• Operational plans

• Tolerate
• Treat
• Transfer
• Terminate

RISK 
TREATMENT

• Risk policy
• Risk appetite
• Risk rating  

criteria

SET THE
FRAMEWORK

FOR RISK
MANAGEMENT

• Identify risk
• Assess risks

RISK 
ASSESSMENT

Risk management process
The below diagram outlines the KCT Group risk management process
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

   
 

• KCT Group recently established new entities as part of its process of the Group restructure to ensure its 

    investment companies are strategically positioned and tax efficient to carry out the KCT Group objectives.

• Zero default rate in the current financial obligations with financiers

• Receving consecutive unqualified audits since 2008 

• Finalised the KCT Group Voluntary Disclosure Programme with SARS and settled all VAT balances

• RMB loan decreased by R12.4 million through capital repayments made during the financial year 

   Total revaluation of the KCT Group investment properties of R264 mllion as at 30 June 2018 

• Net worth of the KCT Group improved by R48million

• The City of Cape Town has waived the R11,6million repayment of the USDG due to KBD Housing’s   

    decision to change the phase 1 housing product to an institutional subsidy product

• The proposed restructure of the main loan facility and the settlement of a short term loan has been ap  

    proved by the bank which will result in increased liquidity through lowered loan repayment

• Continued 100% occupancy of the KCT Mall since its inception

• In-house Property Management Unit which has replaced the previously outsourced property   

   management services is operating efficiently

• Improved recovery of outstanding debt from tenants

• Providing Khayelitsha based  small businesses such as Spinach King an enabling environment to   

   operate their kiosk from the KCT Mall

• The KCT Mall is home to more than 20 informal traders who enjoy the benefit of trading within the Mall    

   at a meagre monthly fee. 

• Over 39 local companies have been used to render services at the KCT Mall to the value of over R5.9m

• Partnership with Informal Trader’s Association of Khayelitsha Mall in providing storage facilities for the   

   traders and thus reducing transportation costs

• Partnership with False Bay College in providing internship training to unemployed young graduates

• Provision of use of the KCT Business Park at below market rentals to the Lindokuhle Children Centre. 

• The Lindokuhle Children Centre provides homecare to abandoned children in and around Khayelitsha.

• Signed lease agreement with Corevest Group for the establishment of a healthcare clinic facility

• Partnership with a Khayelitsha based voluntary group called Women with Intergrity in hosting elderly   

   people in honour of the Nelson Mandela and Albertinal Sisulu Centenary celebrations.

• Formation of a Project Steering Committee in conjunction with City of Cape Town for housing provision to  

   Khayelitsha beneficiaries. 

.

Retail operations

Local Empowerment

New Partnerships

Governance

Financial
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All Trustees and Staff Members shall: 

• Perform all functions in good faith with honesty and transparency.

• Act in the best interests of the Trust at all times.

• Disclose all conflicts of interest of self, spouse or partner or  

 business associate.

• Attend all meetings of the Trust unless leave of absence is granted.

• Not use his/ her position at the Trust for personal gain or improper  

 benefit.

• Declare all personal financial interests.

• Not request, solicit or accept any reward, gift or favour for acting  

 in a manner against the interests of the Trust. 

• Not disclose pr ivi leged or confidential information to any  

 unauthorised person. 

• Not use, take, acquire or benefit from any Trust property. 

• Report any breaches of these codes.

KHAYELITSHA COMMUNITY TRUST
GROUP CODES OF CONDUCT
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Budget 
Date

Performance 
Indicators

Target Performance  Actual Performance
Reason for variance and 

remedial action
Revised Target

01/07/17– 
30/06/18

Raise funding to repay 
the USDG funding to 
the City of Cape Town 
for phase 1 housing 
units

Raise funding to build 
top structure to 368 
housing units

Phase 1 and 2 
housing land 
transferred by the City 
of Cape Town

Commence with 
construction of phase 
1 housing units

After some engagements held 
with the City of Cape Town, 
the National Department of 
Human Settlements as well 
as strategizing on the options 
available to both KCT and KBD 
Housing, the Board of Trustees 
agreed to the recommendation 
by KBD Housing to convert the 
housing product for phase 1 
from GAP units to BNG units. 
The conversion to BNG units has 
led to the City of Cape Town 
resolving that the USDG funding 
is no longer payable. This 
resolution is conditional on KBD 
Housing developing the entire 
phase 1 as an institutional 
subsidy product.
KBD Housing has additional 
engaged other industry 
players for the purpose of 
planning development for the 
remaining housing land. These 
engagements included:

• Meetings with Social 
Housing Institutes for phase 2 
housing project
• Meetings with other housing 
developers for achieving the 
hybrid development model 

The resolution of the USDG 
funding matter has allowed 
the City’s Property Department 
to commence with the City’s 
internal process for the transfer 
of the housing land as follows:

• Phase 1 housing land 
measuring 6ha to be transferred 
directly to the end user
• Phase 2 measuring 4ha to 
be transferred to KBD Housing as 
soon as the amended Council 
resolution is obtained. 

The top structure funding can 
only be approved once the 
amended business plan and list 
of approved beneficiaries have 
been submitted to the City of 
Cape Town.

The beneficiary 
administration process 
commences in February 
2019 and is planned 
to be completed and 
approved by May 2019. 
The business plan process 
has commenced and is 
planned to be completed 
by February 2019.

Khayelitsha Community Trust (“KCT” or “the Trust”) 
Performance Report Year ended 30 June 2018

INTEGRATED REPORT 2018

The Trust has aligned its performance measurement approach with the strategic objectives as set out in the Trust’s Strategic 
Plan. The Strategic Plan of the Trust takes into account the City of Cape Town’s IDP strategic themes as well as the deliverables 
set out in the Memorandum of Agreement between the Trust and the City.

All performance areas and indicators are regularly reviewed by Trust management. In the 2017 financial year the Chief 
Executive Officer reported on a number of challenges pertaining to transfer of land by the City of Cape Town. Though some 
progress as reported in the 2018 report of the Chief Executive Officer has been made in resolving these challenges, delivery 
has been impacted. Despite hampered delivery, KCT and its subsidiary companies continued to strive throughout the year 
to ensure progress is made in achieving its set objectives. The following objectives were set by the Trust for the reporting 
period of 2017/18:

2. 1.  To ensure that the housing project in the Khayelitsha Central Business District provides housing that meets the 
demand and preferences of residents of Khayelitsha and is competitively priced and affordable. 

The City’s Property 
Management have 
advised that the 
report to amend the 
Council resolution 
on the transfer of 
10ha housing land 
will be considered 
as follows:

• Report to serve    
at Sub-Counciil 
10 sitting on 19 
November 2018 
• Thereafter, 
report to serve at 
Council meeting for 
approval
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Budget 
Date

Performance 
Indicators

Target Performance  Actual Performance
Reason for variance and 

remedial action
Revised Target

01/07/17– 
30/06/18

01/07/17 
– 
30/06/18

& 
Ongoing

KCT Group restructure 
in place enabling an 
environment attractive 
for investment and tax 
efficiency for future 
developments.

Agreements 
and founding 
documents for the 
implementation 
of the restructure 
developed and 
signed

The conversion of the Phase 
1 368 units to a BNG product 
allowed for a process of 
engaging the City of Cape 
Town for top structure funding. 
Progress made includes the 
following:
• Project Manager and 
Town Planner appointed 
for both Phase 1 housing 
implementation and Phase 2 
housing project planning
• Project Steering Committee 
has been established for Phase 
1 housing and meetings have 
commenced
• Beneficiary administrator 
has been appointed
• Consultation processes with 
the City of Cape Town have 
commenced for the inclusion 
of a top structure funding 
budget provision in the City’s 
budget

All agreements and 
founding documents for 
the implementation of the 
agreements have been 
developed by the legal 
advisors. 

A number of meetings and 
workshops have been held 
by the KCT Group of Trustees 
and Directors to implement 
the recommendations of the 
restructure process which 
include the following:
• strategic planning sessions 
• A director training session
• Special meeting to review 
the legal agreements

The resolution of the USDG 
funding matter has allowed 
the City’s Property Department 
to commence with the City’s 
internal process for the transfer 
of the housing land as follows:

• Phase 1 housing land 
measuring 6ha to be transferred 
directly to the end user
• Phase 2 measuring 4ha to 
be transferred to KBD Housing as 
soon as the amended Council 
resolution is obtained. 

The top structure funding can 
only be approved once the 
amended business plan and list 
of approved beneficiaries have 
been submitted to the City of 
Cape Town.

Target achieved

The beneficiary 
administration process 
commences in February 
2019 and is planned 
to be completed and 
approved by May 2019. 
The business plan process 
has commenced and is 
planned to be completed 
by February 2019.

The City’s Property 
Management have 
advised that the 
report to amend the 
Council resolution 
on the transfer of 
10ha housing land 
will be considered 
as follows:

• Report to serve    
at Sub-Counciil 
10 sitting on 19 
November 2018 
• Thereafter, 
report to serve at 
Council meeting for 
approval
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Budget 
Date

Performance 
Indicators

Target Performance  Actual Performance
Reason for variance and 

remedial action
Revised Target

01/07/17 
– 
30/06/18

& 
Ongoing

Fulfill the conditions 
set by the City Council 
in the approved 
Spatial Development    
Framework (“SDF”)

All investment 
companies to be 
capacitated to 
ensure delivery of set 
objectives.

Approved masterplan 
of the Khayelitsha 
CBD with developers’ 
contributions 
strategies and signed 
services agreement.

Commence 
implementation 
of the package of 
development plans / 
Masterplan by:

Signed agreements 
with Corevest for the 
establishment of a 
clinic healthcare 
facility

Signed agreements 
with Marang Group 
for the establishment 
of a private hospital

Signed agreements 
with Curro for the 
establishment of a 
private school

The appointment of the first 
Directors to serve on the 
Boards of the investment 
companies has been done by 
the Trustees.

Land lease negotiations 
commenced with Corevest 
Group and most recently the 
lease agreement was entered 
into between Corevest Group 
and KCT

A draft MOU was developed 
and the terms of engagement 
are still being negotiated with 
the Marang Group for the 
establishment of a private 
hospital.

After several meetings the 
project had to be abodoned 
as decision-making is 
being delayed by Curro 
management. 

Newly appointed directors 
have commenced with 
implementation of the mandate 
of the various companies

Target achieved

A due diligence process is being 
conducted by KCT to assess 
viability of the project.

The conclusion of an alternate 
site establishment agreement 
between Curro and Old Mutual 
has resulted in recommending 
that the land be released for 
more housing opportunities.

The appointment of 
staff and additional 
Directors will be finalized 
by the current Directors 
as per the plans of the 
respective companies

The draft services 
agreement has been 
submitted to the City by 
the Trust’s engineers. The 
process will be finalized 
once the City’s internal 
departments have 
provided comments for 
approval.

The outcomes of the 
due diligence process 
are envisaged to 
be submitted by the 
Management to the 
Board at the first Board 
meeting to be held in the 
new calendar year.

KBD Housing is 
currently engaging 
housing developers for 
development of the 4ha
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Budget 
Date

Performance 
Indicators

Target Performance  Actual Performance
Reason for variance and 

remedial action
Revised Target

01/07/17– 
30/06/1

Professional team to 
produce a bankable 
scheme for additional 
retail offering

Engage 3rd 
parties to improve 
functionality of the 
retail centre

Needs assessment 
for the establishment 
of a Government 
precinct concluded 
in partnership with 
Willkru

Leases supporting 
the feasibility signed 
(Anchor tenants and 
nationals)

Finance approved

Improved aesthetic 
and functionality 
of the retail centre 
done in partnership 
with experienced 
developers

The project has not 
progressed beyond the 
needs assessment stage 
as national government 
departments have not been 
forthcoming for business plan 
formulation and tenant lease 
commitments.

The Development 
Management Unit is 
assisting KBD Retail 
Properties with an 
alternative retail scheme 
will address the plans to 
improve retail offering in 
the CBD. These plans have 
been shared with the 
Developments Committee.

A parallel process is being 
conducted to assess the 
feasibility of covering 
the current retail centre 
in order to improve its 
functionality.

The feasibilities have been 
updated in-line with the 
alternative scheme being 
considered.  
Professional team to be 
updated on amended 
brief once all internal 
planning processes have 
been concluded.

The due diligence 
process on the short-listed 
company was completed. 
The partnership could 
not be concluded due 
to critical conditions not 

The progress on this project 
was affected by the arbitration 
process brought by one of the 
anchors of the existing retail 
centre. 
The outcome of the arbitration 
has had a negative impact on 
the initial plans and the related 
feasibility. 

The City’s Property Department 
is awaiting finalisation of an 
independent land valuation to 
be finalised by their valuers as 
part of the City’s requirements 
for the approval process.

Approval of finance is 
dependent on land transfer and 
bankability reaching 75% of the 
leases concluded.

 KCT Group is currently pursuing 
alternative investors for a 
potential partnership in the 
provision of improved retail 
offering.

The updating of the 
feasibilities will be an 
ongoing process until the 
plans of the alternative 
scheme are finalised. This 
process is aimed to be 
concluded by the third 
quarter of 2019 calendar 
year. 

Though no concrete 
indication has been 
provided by the City’s 
Property Department 
on timeframes of the 
retail land serving 
before Council,  Trust’s 
management will 
continue to pursue City’s 
commitment on this 
matter.

This process is aimed to 
be concluded by the third 
quarter of 2019 calendar 
year.

Due Diligence 
process aimed to be 
completed by the first 
quarter of the 2019 
calendar year.
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Budget 
Date

Performance 
Indicators

Target Performance  Actual Performance
Reason for variance and 

remedial action
Revised Target

  
30/06/18 Partnership 

development with 
relevant service 
providers

Acquisition of 
additional funds 
to contribute to 
KCT financial 
self-dependence 
& ultimate 
sustainability

2 unemployed young 
graduates trained per 
annum

2 Partnerships 
with relevant 
service providers 
established

Additional funds 
acquired through 
implementation 
of the fundraising 
strategy

 
2 interns were trained by 
the KCT Group during the 
financial year in the field 
Financial Accounting and 
facilities management

Partnerships established with 
2 companies as follows:
• Partnership with False Bay 
College in providing internship 
training to unemployed young 
graduates
• Partnership with Informal 
Trader’s Association of 
Khayelitsha Mall in assisting 
the traders with business 
operations such as storage.

The KCT Group fundraising 
strategy is based on KCT’s 
investment companies 
leveraging its asset base in 
all planned developments 
to ensure perpetuity of 
income to the Group.

Though the 
implementation of the 
fundraising strategy has 
been impacted by LAA 
matters, some of the 
initiatives taken during the 
2018 financial year are as 
follows:

- Sale of equity in KBD 
Retail for the purpose of 
improving liquidity of the 
company, settling some 
of the debts and thus 
improving the liquidity of 
the Group

Target achieved.

Target achieved.

The impactful 
implementation of the 
fundraising strategy has 
been affected by the delays 
in land transfers.

The initial negotiations with 
a third party for the sale of 
equity in Retail operations 
were unsuccessful due to 
conditions not being met by 
the third party. Engagements 
are being held with an 
alternative potential investor

The financier has approved 
the restructure of the loans. 

Management to present 
a report on alternative 
investor at the first Board 
meeting of the new 
calendar year.

Agreements to 
conclude the 
process are aimed 
to be finalized by 14 
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Budget 
Date

Performance 
Indicators

Target Performance  Actual Performance
Reason for variance and 

remedial action
Revised Target

30/06/18
- Restructuring the 
long-term debt of KBD 
Retail Properties and KBD 
Management which has 
resulted in an improved 
repayment plan being 
reached with the financier

- The restructure of the of 
the KCT Group which will 
result in the consolidation 
of the land and buildings 
of the Retail Centre to be 
in one entity. This will allow 
for a better investment 
structure for any potential 
investor.

Agreements to conclude 
the restructure process have 
been finalized.

Agreements to 
conclude the 
process are aimed 
to be finalized by 14 
December 2019.
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“Board of Trustees

The Board of Trustees operates in terms of a formal written

charter and comprises a balance of leadership with nonexecutive

trustees, who are appointed by the Board through

a formal process. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief

Financial Officer are attendees at board meetings. The Trust

and its trustees are committed to complying with the principles

of openness, integrity including accountability as advocated 

in the King Report on Governance for South Africa (King III).”

GOVERNANCE & INSTITUTIONAL
ARRANGEMENTS

51
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GOVERNANCE AND INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS

Corporate governance
KCT is constituted as follows:

Board of Trustees
The Board of Trustees operates in terms of a formal written 
charter and comprises a balance of leadership with non-
executive trustees, who are appointed by the Board through 
a formal process. The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief 
Financial Officer are attendees at board meetings. The Trust 
and its trustees are committed to complying with the principles 
of openness, integrity and accountability as advocated in 
the King Report on Governance for South Africa (King III). 
The following committees assist the Board in discharging its 
collective responsibility for corporate governance:

Audit and Risk Management Committee
The Audit and Risk Management Committee provides a 
forum for discussing business risk and control  issues. It 
also monitors the work of external and internal auditors 
and reviews the annual financial statements. Offers 
recommendations to the Board for consideration.

Finance Committee
The Finance Committee ensures the competence and 
integrity of the Khayelitsha Community Trust Group’s financial 
management processes.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee assists 

the Board in fulfilling its obligations regarding human 
resources, including performance and succession matters.

Marketing and PR Committee
The Marketing and Public Relations Committee develops 
strategies that encourage the target audience’s 
involvement and generates interest and awareness in the 
organisation’s mission and projects.

Procurement and Bidding Committee
The Procurement and Bidding Committee reviews the Trust’s 
procurement policies and practices to ensure that these 
are in line with current best practice. It also ensures that 
all procurement processes are conducted in a fair and 
ethical manner, and comply with the Trust’s Supply Chain 
Management Policy. This guarantees that the Trust and 
investment companies’ empowerment policies are vigorously 
implemented when procuring goods and services.

Development Committee
The Development Committee assists the Board in carrying 
out its due diligence function relating to development plans. 
It creates an enabling environment, provides a supporting 
role, facilitates implementation through strategic direction 
and develops supporting operation systems.

Finance
Committee

Audit & Risk 
Management

Committee

Development
Committee

Human
Resources
Committee

Procurement
and Bidding
Committee

Marketing
and PR

Committee

BOARD 
OF TRUSTEES
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Bulelwa Belu-Toni
Board Chairperson
Chair of HR/Remco
BAdmin,
Marketing Management
Diploma, Management
Development Diploma

Mandla Maxongo
Deputy Chair
Chair of Developments Committee
Chair of Procurement & Bidding 
Committee
BCom, Map

Anthony Coombe
Chair of Audit Committee
BCom Chartered Accountant

Pholisa Makeleni
Chair of Finance Committee
ND: Business Management

Ndithini Tyhido
Chair of Marketing and
PR Committee
Certificate: Production Management

Zamikhaya Mbalo
Board Member
BIURIS Degree, LLB, Advanced Diploma
in Labour Law

Sebastian Jozi
Board Member
Bachelor of Accounting Science

Funeka Mpetha
Board Member
ND: Public Management

Qubudile Richard Dyantyi
Board Member
Associate in Management
Sales and Marketing Diploma
Project Management Diploma

BOARD OF TRUSTEES



BOARD OF TRUSTEES
EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM

Mkhululi Gaula
Chief Executive Officer
Cert. Property Development
Programme (UCT) MSc.
Management & Implementation
of Development Projects (UMIST),
Postgraduate Diploma in Policy &
Development, Admin (Wits); 
BAdmin (UWC)

Samela Titus Nabe
Chief Financial Officer
BCOMPT (UNISA),
Cert. Project Management (UCT)

Thembisa Jemsana
Development Manager
B.Sc. Quantity Surveying (NMMU)

Faizal Sulaiman
Property Portfolio Manager
MBA (MANCOSA)
Operations Management Diploma (York 
Academy) Project Management (UKZN)

The executive team is collectively accountable for overall organisational performance. They take responsibility for 
vision, alignment and deployment; creating a culture of empowerment and for developing commitment. As such the 

team supports the CEO in formulating strategy, identifying and managing strategic issues and handling significant 
operational matters.
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ATTENDANCE OF BOARD AND SUB-COMMITTEE MEETINGS 
FOR THE PERIOD OF 01 JULY 2017 – 30 JUNE 2018

Details of the Board of Trustees 

Board Member Capacity Position Race & Gender 

MS Bulelwa Belu-Toni Non-executive Chairperson Black Female 

Mr Mandla Maxongo Non-executive Deputy Chairperson Black Male 

Mr Anthony Coombe Non-executive Member White Male 

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Non–executive Member Black Male

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Non-executive Member Black Female 

Ms Funeka Mpetha Non-executive Member Black Female

Mr Sebastian Jozi Non-executive Member Black Male 

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo Non–executive Member Black Male 

Mr Richard Dyantyi Non–executive Member Black Male

 
Board Meetings for the 2017/2018 Financial Year  

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni Chairperson 2 2

Mr Mandla Maxongo Deputy Chairperson 2 2

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 2 2

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 2 2

Mr Sebastian Jozi Member 2 2

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Member 2 2

Ms Funeka Mpetha Member 2 2

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo Member 2 2

Mr Richard Dyantyi Member 2 2

Annual General Meeting for the 2017/2018 Financial Year  

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni Chairperson 1 1

Mr Mandla Maxongo Deputy Chairperson 1 1

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 1 1

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 1 1

Mr Sebastian Jozi Member 1 1

Ms  Pholisa Makeleni Member 0 1

Ms Funeka Mpetha Member 1 1

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo Member 1 1

Mr Richard Dyantyi Member 0 1
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Human Resources and Remuneration Committee meetIngs for the 2017/2018 Financial Year 

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Mrs Bulelwa Belu-Toni Chairperson 1 1

Mr Mandla Maxongo Member 1 1

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Member 1 1

 
Audit and Risk Management Committee meetings for the 2017/2018 Financial Year   

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Mr Anthony Coombe Chairperson 4 4

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 3 4

Sebastian Jozi Member 4 4

Zamikhaya Mbalo Member 4 4

Finance Committee meeting for the 2017/2018 Financial Year   

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Chairperson 2 3

Mr Sebastian Jozi Member 3 3

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 2 3

Marketing and PR Committee meetings for the 2017/2018 Financial Year 

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Chairperson 3 3

Mrs Bulelwa Belu-Toni Member 2 3

Ms Funeka Mpetha Member 2 3

 
Development Committee meeting for the 2017/2018 Financial Year 

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Mr Mandla Maxongo Chairperson 3 3

Mrs Bulelwa Belu-Toni Member 2 3

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 3 3

Mr Richard Dyantyi Member 2 3

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Member 2 3

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 2 3
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AD HOC MEETINGS

Special Board meetings for the 2017/2018 Financial Year 

Board member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni Chairperson 5 5

Mr Mandla Maxongo Deputy Chairperson 4 5

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 5 5

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 5 5

Mr Sebastian Jozi Member 4 5

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Member 3 5

Ms Funeka Mpetha Member 5 5

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo Member 5 5

Mr Richard Dyantyi Member 3 5

Trustees Strategic Planning Session for the 2017/2018 Financial Year 

Board member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni Chairperson 2 2

Mr Mandla Maxongo Deputy Chairperson 2 2

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 2 2

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 2 2

Mr Sebastian Jozi Member 2 2

Ms  Pholisa Makeleni Member 2 2

Ms Funeka Mpetha Member 2 2

Mr Zamikhaya Mbalo Member 2 2

Mr Richard Dyantyi Member 2 2

Special human resources and remuneration committee meetngs for the 2017/2018 financial year

Board member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Ms Bulelwa Belu-Toni Chairperson 3 3

Mr Mandla Maxongo Deputy Chairperson 3 3

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Member 2 3

Board Member Position Attendance Total number of meetings 

Mr Mandla Maxongo Chairperson 1 1

Mrs Bulelwa Belu-Toni Member 0 1

Mr Ndithini Tyhido Member 1 1

Mr Richard Dyantyi Member 1 1

Ms Pholisa Makeleni Member 0 1

Mr Anthony Coombe Member 1 1

Special developments committee meeting for the 2017/2018 financial year
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND BENEFICIARIES OF THE 

KHAYELITSHA COMMUNITY TRUST (KCT)

 

We are pleased to present our report on the KCT Group for 

the financial year ended 30 June 2018. 

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE

The names of Audit Committee members and their 

attendance at committee meetings during the financial 

year are set out below.

Name of Member
Number of 
meetings attended 

Mr AC Coombe (Chairperson) 4 out of 4 

Mr S Jozi                                             4 out of 4

Mr Z Mbalo                                          4 out of 4

Mr N Tyhido                                         3 out of 4

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as 

well as representatives of the Internal and External Auditors 

are standing attendees at each meeting of the Audit 

Committee, which has direct access to these attendees in 

the fulfillment of its responsibilities..

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY

The Committee reports that it has complied with its 

responsibilities arising from its terms of reference, as 

approved by the Board of Trustees.  

EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The systems of internal control are designed to provide cost 

effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that 

liabilities and working capital are efficiently managed. 

Based on our review and evaluation of the audit work of 

the outsourced Internal Auditors and of the independent 

External Auditors, as reported to us for the year under 

review, the Audit and Risk Committee is of the opinion that 

the systems of internal control were generally adequate 

but needing some improvements in the areas of human 

resources and supply chain management in order to ensure 

more effective operation. Such internal control weaknesses 

as were identified and reported to us have been or will be 

rectified by Management. 

The Committee undertakes to monitor corrective action 

to ensure that internal checking and control measures 

continue to be implemented, so as to continuously improve 

the internal control environment.

The risk register has been used by the Internal Auditors to 

prepare their audit coverage plan and to undertake audit 

work in the higher risk areas identified.

QUALITY OF MANAGEMENT REPORTS

The Committee is of the view that the content and quality 

of monthly and quarterly management reports presented 

by Management to the Board of Trustees  were partially 

adequate to reflect reliably and accurately the results of the 

Trust in comparison with business plans and budgets. The 

main reason for reaching this conclusion is that Management 

needs to improve its reporting in respect of development 

management and supply chain management.

REVIEW AND EVALUATION OF THE GROUP ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• Reviewed and discussed with the External Auditors the  

     audited group annual financial statements and their  

    report  thereon for the year ended 30 June 2018 included in  

 the integrated report of the Trust;

• Reviewed the performance report for the year ended 30  

 June 2018 included in the integrated report of the KCT Group;

• Reviewed management responses to the final management 

 letter issued by the External Auditors;

• Reviewed the appropriateness of the  accounting policies  

 and practices applied by the KCT Group; and 

• Reviewed adjustments resulting from the annual audit.

CONCLUSION

The Audit and Risk Committee has considered and concurs 

with the conclusions of the External Auditors on the group 

annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 

and recommends them to the Board of Trustees for adoption. 

. 

A C Coombe
Chairperson of the Audit Committee
16 November 2018
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
General Information

Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa

Type of trust To manage and undertake development of the Khayelitsha 
Business District

Trustees B Belu-Toni (Chair)
M Maxongo (Deputy Chair)
A C Coombe
N L Tyhido
P Makeleni
F Mpetha
S Jozi
Z A Mbalo
R Dyantyi

Registered office Mazars House
Rialto Road
Grand Moorings Precinct
Century City
7441

Business address Office 3
Ground Floor, Old Dutch Square
Bellville
7530

Bankers ABSA Bank Limited
FirstRand Bank Limited

Registered auditor Mazars
Registered Auditor

Trust registration number T3011/2003

Level of assurance These annual financial statements have been audited in
compliance with the applicable requirements of the Trust
Property Control Act 57 of 1988.

Preparer The annual financial statements were independently compiled
by: Norman Silbowitz
Chartered Accountant (SA)

Issued 12 February 2019
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Trustee

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number IT3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Trustees' Responsibilities and Approval

The trustees are required in terms of the trust deed to 
maintain adequate accounting records and are
responsible for the content and integrity of the consolidated 
annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. It is their responsibility to 
ensure that the consolidated annual financial
statements fairly present the state of affairs of the group as at 
the end of the financial year and the results of its
operations and cash flows for the period then ended, in 
conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards, the trust deed and SAICA Financial Reporting 
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices
Committee. 
The external auditors are engaged to express an 
independent opinion on the consolidated annual
financial statements.
The consolidated annual financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued 
by the Accounting Practices Committee and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently 
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The trustees acknowledge that they are ultimately 
responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the group and place considerable 
importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To
enable the trustees to meet these responsibilities, the trustees 
sets standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. 
The standards include the proper delegation of
responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective 
accounting procedures and adequate segregation of
duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls 
are monitored throughout the group and all

employees are required to maintain the highest ethical 
standards in ensuring the group’s business is conducted
in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above 
reproach. The focus of risk management in the group
is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all 
known forms of risk across the group. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group endeavours to 
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure,
controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and 
managed within predetermined procedures and
constraints.
The trustees are of the opinion, based on the information 
and explanations given by management, that the
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance 
that the financial records may be relied on for the
preparation of the consolidated annual financial statements. 
However, any system of internal financial control
can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance 
against material misstatement or loss.
The trustees have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for 
the year to 30 June 2019 and, in light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied 
that the group has access to adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditors are responsible for independently 
auditing and reporting on the group’s consolidated
annual financial statements. The consolidated annual 
financial statements have been examined by the group’s
external auditors and their report is presented on pages 63 
to 64.
The consolidated annual financial statements set out on 
pages 65 to 102, which have been prepared on the going
concern basis, were approved by the trustees on 12 February 
2019  and were signed on their behalf by:

Trustee
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To the trustee of Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Annual Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of Khayelitsha Community Trust and
its Subsidiaries set out on pages 67 to 102, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018,
and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate annual financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate annual financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the trust deed.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate
Annual Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the trust in accordance with the
Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code)
and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (Parts A and
B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern
We draw attention to note 29 in the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, which indicates that
at 30 June 2018, the trust earned a profit in the current year of R 10,909,188 (2017: loss of R 16,689,102).
Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries current liabilities exceeded its current assets by R 24,347,575
and that it earned a profit of R 48,271,418 (2017: R 282,295) for the same period.
As stated in note 29, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 29, indicate that a
material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 32 to the financial statements which indicates that the previously issued financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, on which we issued an auditor’s report dated 16 November 2018,
have been revised and reissued. As explained in Note 32, the audit report page numbers referring to the audited
consolidated and separate financial statements presented in the integrated report were not correct. The audit
report page numbers in the integrated report referred to pages 10 to 49, and should have read pages 67 to 101.
Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Trustees’ Report as
required by the Trust Property Control Act 57 of 1988. The other information does not include the consolidated
and separate annual financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate annual financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number IT3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Independent Auditor's Report
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appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the trustees for the Consolidated and Separate Annual Financial Statements
The trustees are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate annual
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
trust deed, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated and separate annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, the trustees are responsible for
assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated and Separate Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate annual financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate annual financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate annual financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group’s internal control.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the trustees.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of the trustees use of the going concern basis of accounting and
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated and separate annual financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
group to cease to continue as a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate annual
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate annual
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
We communicate with the trustees regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

Mazars
Partner: S Naidoo
Registered Auditor
12 February 2019
Cape Town
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number IT3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Trustees' Report

The trustees have pleasure in submitting their report on the consolidated annual financial statements of Khayelitsha 
Community Trust and its Subsidiaries and the group for the year ended 30 June 2018.

1. Nature of business

The group is engaged to manage and undertake development of the Khayelitsha Business District. There have been no 
material changes to the nature of the group’s business from the prior year.

2. Review of financial results and activities

The consolidated consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the trust deed and SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as
issued by the Accounting Practices Committee. The accounting policies have been applied consistently
compared to the prior year.

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the group are set out in these
consolidated consolidated annual financial statements.

During the period under review, the properties have been revalued at year-end resulting in fair value adjustments
being recognised in the group, as reflected in note 20 of these consolidated financial statements, which have
had a material effect on the results for the year under review.

3. Trust capital

There have been no changes to the trust capital during the year under review.

4. Trustees

The trustees in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Trustees
B Belu-Toni (Chair)
M Maxongo (Deputy Chair)
A C Coombe
N L Tyhido
P Makeleni
F Mpetha
S Jozi
Z A Mbalo
R Dyantyi

5. Interests in subsidiaries

Name of subsidiary Net income/
(loss)

Other comprehensive income - 
gains on property valuation

Total comprehensive
income/(loss)

KBD Management Proprietary Limited 1,234,905 - 1,234,905

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited (650,764) - (650,764)

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited (17,041,187) 50,465,484 33,424,297

(16,457,046) 50,465,484 34,008,438

There were no significant acquisitions or divestitures during the year ended 30 June 2018.

6. Events after the reporting period

The trustees are aware of the following significant events which occurred after the reporting date:

In the prior year, a provision for the repayment of the USDG funding to the City of Cape Town was raised
due to the change in the housing typology that was envisaged at the time for the 368 units for Phase 1.
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The Khayelitsha Community Trust has subsequently changed the housing typology from GAP units to
BNG units. The 368 units for Phase 1 relating to the BNG Housing project are to be delivered as an
institutional subsidy housing product to waiver the demand for the repayment of USDG funding by
Khayelitsha Community Trust. The City of Cape Town is to determine how the land sale deposit for 10
hectares that has been paid is to be treated as only four out of the 10 hectares are to be transferred to the
Trust.

In 2016, Khayelitsha Community Trust Group (KCT) sought legal advice on the best structure to
implement in anticipation of having any third party investing in one of the entities of KCT Group for
purposes of strengthening the liquidity of the KCT Group in the long term, as well as improving the current
group structure. The restructure is important to address the current structure where you have the
underlying land of the KCT Mall being owned by one group entity whereas the leasehold improvements
are owned by another entity in the group.

KCT Group has commenced with implementing the legal advice which outcome will be incorporating a
new entity as a subsidiary of KBD Management, namely KBD Retail Holdings. KBD Retail Holdings,
through asset-for-share and intragroup transactions, will ultimately hold the land, the rental enterprise and
the buildings that are currently held in KCT and KBD Retail respectively.
The trustees are not aware of any other material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of
this report.

7.Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2018, the trust earned a profit in the current year of R 10,909,188
(2017: loss of R 16,689,102). Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by R 24,347,575 and that it earned a profit of R 48,271,418 (2017: R 282,295) for the same period.
The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to
a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the
realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary
course of business.
The ability of the trust to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of
these are:

• Khayelitsha Retail Centre valued at R 271,000,000 (2017: R 242,000,000) at year end.
• KBD Housing Proprietary Limited has commenced its housing development project. The bulk
 infrastructure phase and the internal services development have been completed.
• The investment properties held by Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries have been revalued
 upwards by R 22,532,971 (2017: R 10,566,738).

8. Auditors
Mazars continued in office as auditors for the company and its subsidiaries for 2018.
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 87,348 79,407 87,348 60,193

Investment property 4 333,027,282 310,426,357 69,000,000 69,000,000

Interst in subsidiary 5 - - 100 100

Other financial assets 6 - - 20,897,449 -

Operating lease asset 7 7,893,130 2,809,785 354,217 395,380

341,007,760 313,315,549 90,339,114 69,474,887

Current Assets

Loans to group companies 8 - - 465,158 460,641

Trade and other receivables 9 5,369,710 6,367,539 7,211,027 27,627,987

Other financial assets 6 183,450 4,147,758 - -

Operating lease asset 7 1,579,586 117,251 41,164 33,273

Cash and cash equivalents 10 5,500,463 5,606,781 356,391 1,017,161

12,633,209 16,239,329 8,073,740 29,139,062

Total Assets 353,640,969 329,554,878 98,412,854 98,613,949

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Share capital 100 100 100 100

Retained income 11 278,359,372 230,087,954 89,497,506 78,588,318

278,359,472 230,088,054 89,497,606 78,588,418

Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Other financial liabilities 12 36,030,861 52,010,856 908,232 987,137

Operating lease liability 7 - 53,395 - -

Deferred tax 13 2,269,852 842,896 - -

38,300,713 52,907,147 908,232 987,137

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 14 10,953,359 21,939,786 7,767,788 17,482,799

Other financial liabilities 12 22,478,273 18,916,857 78,905 78,905

Current tax payable 3,548,599 5,703,034 160,323 1,476,690

  Bank overdraft 10 553 - - -

36,980,784 46,559,677 8,007,016 19,038,394

Total Liabilities 75,281,497 99,466,824 8,915,248 20,025,531

Total Equity & Liabilities 353,640,969 329,554,878 98,412,854 98,613,949
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenue 15 55,256,142 43,658,294 5,183,151 2,909,240

Other operating income 16 14,694,369 11,857 13,702,342 1,072,234

Other operating expenses (31,202,564) (41,502,782) (7,873,327) (20,407,755)

Operating profit (loss) 17 38,747,947 2,167,369 11,012,166 (16,426,281)

Investment income 18 377,203 1,014,665 62,818 258,679

Finance costs 19 (7,999,480) (9,910,965) (165,796) (521,500)

Fair value adjustments 20 22,532,971 10,566,738 - -

Profit (loss) before taxation 53,658,641 3,837,807 10,909,188 (16,689,102)

Taxation (charge) 21 (5,387,223) (3,555,512) - -

Profit (loss) for the year 48,271,418 282,295 10,909,188 (16,689,102)

Other comprehensive income - - - -

Total comprehensive income (loss) for 
the year

48,271,418 282,295 10,909,188 (16,689,102)
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Statement of Changes in Equity

Figures in Rand Trust capital Retained 
income

Total equity

Group

Balance at 01 July 2016 100 229,805,659 229,805,759

Profit for the year - 282,295 282,295

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 282,295 282,295

Balance at 01 July 2017 100 230,087,954 230,088,054

Profit for the year - 48,271,418 48,271,418

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - 48,271,418 48,271,418

Balance at 30 June 2018 100 278,359,372 278,359,472

Trust

Balance at 01 July 2016 100 95,277,420 95,277,520

Profit for the year - (16,689,102) (16,689,102)

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year - (16,689,102) (16,689,102)

Balance at 01 July 2017 100 78,588,318 78,588,418

Loss for the year - 10,909,188 10,909,188

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year - 10,909,188 10,909,188

Balance at 30 June 2018 100 89,497,506 89,497,606

Note 11
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Statement of Cash Flows

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand Notes 2018 2017 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from (used in) 
operations

22 21,077,950 17,594,624 1,133,741 (3,127,766)

Interest income 377,203 1,014,665 62,818 258,679

Finance costs (7,999,480) (9,910,965) (165,796) (521,500)

Tax paid 23 (5,012,368) (1,106,673) (1,316,367) (362,461)

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from 
operating activities

8,443,305 7,591,651 (285,604) (3,753,048)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and 
equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment

3

3

(28,260)

309

(35,288)

-

(28,260)

309

(35,288)

Purchase of investment property 4 (67,954)  (1,156,255) 309 -

Loans advanced to group companies (268,310) (333,380)

Decrease/(increase) in loan receivable 3,964,308 1,337,563 - -

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from 
investing activities

3,868,403 146,020 (296,261) (368,668)

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of other financial liabilities (12,418,579) (10,970,864) (78,905) (78,905)

Net cash outflow from financing 
activities

(12,418,579) (10,970,864) (78,905) (78,905)

Total cash movement for the year (106,871) (3,233,193) (660,770) (4,200,621)

Cash at the beginning of the year 5,606,781 8,839,974 1,017,161 5,217,782

Total cash at end of the year 10 5,499,910 5,606,781 356,391 1,017,161
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Accounting Policies

1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation 
of these consolidated and seperate annual financial 
statements are set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements 
have been prepared on the going concern basis in 
accordance with, and in compliance with, International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) 
interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing 
these consolidated annual financial statements.

These consolidated annual financial statements comply 
with the requirements of the SAICA Financial Reporting
Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee. 
They are presented in Rands, which is the group’s functional 
currency.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous 
period, except for the new standards and interpretations
set out in note 2.

1.2 Consolidation

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate 
the consolidated annual financial statements of the trust 
and all entities which are controlled by the trust.

The trust has control of an entity when it is exposed to or 
has rights to variable returns from involvement with the entity 
and it has the ability to affect those returns through use of its 
power over the entity.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated 
annual financial statements from the effective date of
acquisition to the effective date of disposal.

Adjustments are made when necessary to the consolidated 
annual financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their 
accounting policies in line with those of the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses 
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Transactions which result in changes in ownership levels, 
where the group has control of the subsidiary both 
before and after the transaction are regarded as equity 
transactions and are recognised directly in the statement of 
changes in equity. The difference between the fair value of 
the consideration paid or received and the movement in the 
non-controlling interest for such transactions is recognised in 

equity attributable to the trust.

1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation 
uncertainty

The preparation of consolidated annual financial 
statements in conformity with International Financial 
Reporting Standards requires management, from time to 
time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of policies and reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates 
are revised and in any future periods affected.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment of financial assets

The group assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity 
investments and loans and receivables for impairment at 
the end of each reporting period. In determining whether 
an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the 
group makes judgements as to whether there is observable 
data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows from the financial asset.

The impairment for trade receivables, held to maturity 
investments and loans and receivables is calculated on a
portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for 
national and industry-specific economic conditions and 
other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate 
with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are 
applied to loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the 
estimated loss emergence period.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded 
in an active market is determined by using valuation 
techniques. The group uses a variety of methods and makes 
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing 
at the end of each reporting period. Quoted market prices 
for similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other 
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are 
used to determine fair value for the remaining financial 
instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated 
at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. 

The carrying value less impairment provision of short-term 
trade receivables and cash and cash equivalents are 
assumed to approximate their fair values. The carrying value 
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of short-term trade payables is assumed to approximate their 
fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure 
purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual 
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available 
to the group for similar financial instruments.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and 
individual assets have been determined based on the 
higher of value-in-use calculations and fair values less 
costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates 
and assumptions. It is reasonably possible that certain 
assumptions may change which may then impact our 
estimations and may then require a material adjustment to 
the carrying value of goodwill and tangible assets.

The group reviews and tests the carrying value of assets 
when events or changes in circumstances suggest that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are 
grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows 
are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets 
and liabilities. If there are indications that impairment may 
have occurred, estimates are prepared of expected future 
cash flows for each group of assets.

Expected future cash flows used to determine the value in 
use of tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could 
materially change over time.

Allowance for doubtful debts

Accounts are written off when they are considered to be 
irrecoverable based on past experience and management’s 
assessment of the debtor.

Taxation

Judgement is required in determining the provision for 
income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are 
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate 
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of 
business. The group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes 
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters 
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, 
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred 
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is 
made.

The group recognises the net future tax benefit related to 
deferred income tax assets to the extent that it is probably 
that the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred 
income tax assets requires the group to make significant 
estimates related to expectations of future taxable income. 
Estimates of future taxable income are based on forecast 
cash flows from operations and the application of existing 
tax laws in each jurisdiction. To the extent that future cash 
flows and taxable income differ significantly from estimates, 
the ability of the group to realise the net deferred tax assets

recorded at the end of the reporting period could be 
impacted.

1.4 Investment property

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and 
only when, it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that are associated with the investment property will flow to 
the enterprise, and the cost of the investment property can 
be measured reliably.
Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction 
costs are included in the initial measurement.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a 
property. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of 
the replaced part is derecognised. Day-to-day servicing of a 
property is expensed immediately.

Fair value model

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is 
measured at fair value.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included 
in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Investment property measured at fair value is not 
depreciated.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the 
group holds for its own use or for rental to others and which 
are expected to be used for more than one year.

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as 
an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the group, and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at 
cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly 
attributable to the acquisition or construction of the asset, 
including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying 
assets.

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing 
an item and restoring the site on which it is located is also 
included in the cost of property, plant and equipment, where 
the group is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where 
the obligation arises as a result of acquiring the asset or 
using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, 
additions to or replacements of parts of property, plant 
and equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow 
to the group and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to 
day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in 
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the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the group. 
Leased assets are depreciated in a consistent manner over 
the shorter of their expected useful lives and the lease term. 
Depreciation is not charged to an asset if its estimated 
residual value exceeds or is equal to its carrying amount. 
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date 
that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment 
have been assessed as follows:

Item  Average useful life
Computer equipment   3 years
Furniture and fixtures   6 years
Office equipment  5 years

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of 
each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change 
is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting 
estimate.

The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit 
or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset.

Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and 
equipment when there is an indicator that they may be 
impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the 
estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying 
amount in line with the recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss 
arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant 
and equipment, determined as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount 
of the item, is included in profit or loss when the item is 
derecognised.

1.6 Interests in subsidiaries
Trust annual financial statements

In the trust’s separate annual financial statements, the 
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any 
accumulated impairment.

The cost of an investment in a subsidiary is the aggregate of:

•   the fair value, at the date of exchange, of assets given, 
liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments 
issued by the entity; plus

•   any costs directly attributable to the purchase of the 
subsidiary

1.7 Financial instruments

Classification

The group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities 
into the following categories:

•  Loans and receivables

•  Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Classification depends on the purpose for which the 
financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes 
place at initial recognition. Classification is re-assessed on 
an annual basis.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the 
group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

The group classifies financial instruments, or their component 
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial 
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value.

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through 
profit or loss, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, less
accumulated impairment losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive 
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been 
transferred and the group has transferred substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation is 
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date the group assesses all financial 
assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, to
determine whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets has been 
impaired.

For amounts due to the group, significant financial difficulties 
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy 
and default of payments are all considered indicators of 
impairment.
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Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the 
financial asset’s recoverable amount can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment 
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying 
amount of the financial asset at the date that the impairment 
is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount 
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in profit or 
loss.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an 
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in
profit or loss within operating expenses. When such assets 
are written off, the write off is made against the relevant 
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts 
previously written off are credited against operating 
expenses.

Loans to group companies and other financial assets

These include loans to subsidiaries and other financial 
assets.

Loans to group companies and other financial assets are 
classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and 
receivables.

Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts 
are recognised in profit or loss when there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial 
difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will 
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or 
delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are 
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. 
The allowance recognised is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective 
interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the 
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss within operating expenses. When 
a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against 
the allowance account for trade receivables. Subsequent 
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against operating expenses in profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are classified as financial liabilities at 
amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash at bank. These are classified as loans and 
receivables.

Borrowings

Borrowings are classified as financial liabilities at amortised 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of 
transaction costs) and the settlement or redemption of 
borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in
accordance with the group’s accounting policy for 
borrowing costs.

1.8 Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent 
unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount 
due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid 
to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability 
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 
a transaction which at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset 
is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable 
profit (tax loss).

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which a deductible temporary difference can be utilised 
when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences 
relating to the same taxation authority and the same tax 
entity which are expected either to reverse in the same 
period as the deductible temporary difference or to reverse
in periods into which a tax loss resulting in the deferred tax 
asset can be carried forward.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of 
unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future 
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax 
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an 
expense and included in profit or loss for the period, except 
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to the extent that the tax arises from:

•   a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same 
or a different period, in other comprehensive income, or

•  a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited in 
other comprehensive income or equity if the tax relates to
items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different 
period, in other comprehensive income or equity.

1.9 Leases

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.

Operating leases - lessor

Operating lease income is recognised as income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as income and the contractual 
receipts is recognised as an operating lease asset. This asset 
is not discounted.

The underlying leased asset is not derecognised from the 
trust’s statement of financial position and is depreciated 
in accordance with the accounting policy for investment 
property.

Contingent rentals are not accounted for on a straight-line 
basis, and are recognised as income when the amounts 
can be reliably measured.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Income from leases is disclosed under revenue in profit or 
loss.

Operating leases – lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating 
lease liability. This liability is not discounted.

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are 
incurred.

1.10 Impairment of assets

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period 

whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates 
the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. 
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of 
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating 
unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value 
in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to the 
extent that it does not exceed the revaluation portion.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if 
the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the units. The impairment loss is allocated to 
reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the 
following order:

•    first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill 
allocated to the cash-generating unit and

•  then, to the other assets of the unit, pro rata on the basis 
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist 
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated. Where 
the recoverable amount of a previously impaired asset or 
a cash-generating unit exceeds the carrying amount, the 
impairment is reversed, except when the impairment relates 
to goodwill. The increased carrying amount of an asset other 
than goodwill attributable to the reversal of an impairment 
loss shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised 
for the asset in prior periods.
A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than 
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any 
reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated 
as a revaluation increase.

1.11 Trust capital and equity

The founder has donated to the trustees the sum of R100 
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which donation the trustees have accepted in trust for the 
purposes and upon the terms and conditions of the trust 
deed.

1.12 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those that are 
expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the 
end of the annual reporting period in which the service is 
rendered, such as sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary 
benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period 
in which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised 
as an expense as the employees render services that 
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs.

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments 
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result 
of past performance.

1.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable 
assurance that:

•   the group will comply with the conditions attaching to 
them; and

•  the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs that 
they are intended to compensate.

A government grant that becomes receivable as 
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the 
entity with no future related costs is recognised as income in
the period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants related to assets, including non-

monetary grants at fair value, are presented in the statement
of financial position by setting up the grant as deferred 
income or by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying 
amount of the asset.

Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the 
profit or loss.
A government grant that becomes repayable is accounted 
for as a change in estimate. Repayment of a grant related 
to income is applied first against any un-amortised deferred 
credit set up in respect of the grant. To the extent that the 
repayment exceeds any such deferred credit, or where 
no deferred credit exists, the repayment is recognised 
immediately as an expense.

Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by 
increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing the 
deferred income balance by the amount repayable. The 
cumulative additional depreciation that would have been 
recognised to date as an expense in the absence of the 
grant is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.14 Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents the amounts 
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal 
course of business, net of trade discounts and volume 
rebates, and value added tax.

The group earns revenue from leasing land and retail space.
Revenue from rental agreements is recognised in 
accordance with the accounting policy for operating leases.
Revenue from operating costs recovered is recognised in 
accordance with the underlying rental agreement.

Interest is recognised, in profit or loss, using the effective 
interest rate method.

1.15 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period 
in which they are incurred.
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

2. New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year

In the current year, the group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

Expected impact:

Amendments to IAS 7: Disclosure initiative 01 January 2017
The impact of the
amendment is not material.

Amendments to IAS 12: Recognition of Deferred 
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

01 January 2017
The impact of the
amendment is not material.

 
2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published
and are mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2017 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date:
Years beginning on or after

Expected impact:

IFRS 16 Leases 01 January 2019
Impact is currently being 
assessed

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 01 January 2018
Impact is currently being 
assessed

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 January 2018
Impact is currently being 
assessed

Amendments to IFRS 15: Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers

01 January 2018
Impact is currently being 
assessed
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

        Group               Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

3.  Property, plant and equipment

Group 2018 2016

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Furniture and fixtures 191,049 (170,099) 20,950 191,049 (165,647) 25,402

Office equipment 35,755 (25,923) 9,832 37,255 (26,080) 11,175

Computer equipment 229,552 (172,986) 56,566 239,892 (197,062) 42,830

Total 456,356 (369,008) 87,348 468,196 (388,789) 79,407

Trust 2018 2017

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Cost Accumulated 
depreciation

Carrying 
value

Furniture and fixtures 170,027 (149,077) 20,950 170,027 (144,625) 25,402

Office equipment 35,755 (25,923) 9,832 37,255 (26,080) 11,175

Computer equipment 229,552 (172,986) 56,566 239,892 (197,062) 42,830

Total 435,334 (347,986) 87,348 447,174 (367,767) 79,407

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2018

Opening
balance

 Additions      Disposal              Total

Furniture and fixtures 25,402 -                   - 20,950

Office equipment 11,175 2,375 (309) 9,832

Computer equipment 42,830 25,885 - 56,566

79,407 28,260 (309) 87,348

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2017

Opening
balance

Additions Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures 22,110 10,755 (7,463) 25,402

Office equipment 4,883 9,005 (2,713) 11,175

Computer equipment 33,200 15,528 (5,898) 42,830

60,193 35,288 (16,074) 79,407

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Trust - 2017

Opening
balance

Additions    Disposal Total

Furniture and fixtures 25,402 - - (4,452) 20,950

Office equipment 11,175 2,375 (309) (3,409) 9,832

Computer equipment 42,830 25,885 - (12,149) 56,566

79,407 28,260 (309) (20,010) 87,348

Depreciation

(4,452)

(3,409)
(12,149)

(20,010)

Depreciation
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

        Group               Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

3. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Trust - 2017

Opening
balance

Additions Depreciation Total

Furniture and fixtures 22,110 10,755 (7,463) 25,402

Office equipment 4,883 9,005 (2,713) 11,175

Computer equipment 33,200 15,528 (5,898) 42,830

60,193 35,288 (16,074) 79,407

4. Investment property

Group 2018 2017

Valuation Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Valuation Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Investment property 333,027,282 - 333,027,282  310,426,357  - 310,426,357

Trust 2018 2017

Valuation Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Valuation Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Investment property 69,000,000 - 69,000,000 69,000,000 - 69,000,000

Reconciliation of investment property - Group - 2018

Opening
balance

Additions Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 310,426,357 67,954 22,532,971 333,027,282

Reconciliation of investment property - Group - 2017

Opening
balance

Additions Fair value
adjustments

Total

Investment property 298,703,364 1,156,255 10,566,738 310,426,357

Reconciliation of investment property - Trust - 2018

Opening
balance

Total

Investment property 69,000,000 69,000,000

Reconciliation of investment property - Trust - 2017

Investment property

Opening
balance

       Total

69,000,000 69,000,000
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

4. Investment property (continued)

Investment property comprises: 

Erven 58857 and 58858 (portions of Erf 18370), Khayelitsha
Consists of land, measuring approximately 47,343 square metres in extent. A portion of the land has been leased indirectly 
to KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited. KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited constructed the Khayelitsha Retail 
Centre on the leased land.

- Purchase price: 20 August 2004 1,634,196 1,634,196 1,634,196 1,634,196

- Revaluations since acquisition 67,365,804 67,365,804 67,365,804 67,365,804

69,000,000 69,000,000 69,000,000 69,000,000

Khayelitsha Retail Centre

Consists of a retail centre that has been constructed by KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited on land leased indirectly 
from Khayelitsha Community Trust. Direct ownership of this retail centre will revert back to Khayelitsha Community Trust at 
the earlier of the expiration of the lease on 31 December 2025, or the repayment of the borrowing referred to in note 12.

- Capitalised expenditure 91,626,855 91,558,900 - -

- Revaluations since acquisition 169,900,428 147,567,457 - -

261,527,283 239,126,357 - -

Business Park

The business park consists of 9 units situated on Erf 75008, a portion of Erf 18730 in Khayelitsha, being land currently owned 
by the City of Cape Town.

- Purchase price: 1 July 2013 1,900,000 1,900,000 - -

- Revaluations since acquisition 600,000 400,000 - -

2,500,000 2,300,000 - -
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 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

4. Investment property (continued)

Details of valuation 

Erven 58857 and 58858, Khayelitsha
The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2018. The valuation was performed by Colin Douglas, (Douglas
Property Valuations CC) who is not connected to the group and has recent experience in the location and category
of the property being valued. Colin Douglas is qualified by means of a national diploma in property valuation,
B.Comm (Unisa) and being a member of the SA Council of Valuers.
The valuation was based on open market value for existing use, and valued at R69,000,000 (2017: R69,000,000).

Khayelitsha Retail Centre
The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2018. The valuation was performed by Colin Douglas of Douglas
Property Valuations CC to the value of R271,000,000 (2017: R242,000,000).

The assumptions used in the income capitalisation valuation were as follows:
Discount rate: 7.75% (2017: 7.75%)
The contractual income is considered to be sustainable in the medium term.
The July 2018 contractual figures have been used in the valuation.
Expenses which do not represent market value have been normalised.
Gross annual income - R 43,318,646 (2017: R 39,109,410)
Estimated annual expenditure - R 16,501,230 (2017: R 14,973,859)
The property could be placed in the open market and a prospective purchaser would not be bound by any head
lease, and would therefore obtain all benefits and liabilities relating to the leasing of floor space at the property. This
assumes that the sale transaction would be at arms length without special conditions. The existing head lease
between KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited and KBD Management Proprietary Limited was ignored.
The servitude over the land which allows the public to make use of a walkthrough has been assumed not to be
detrimental to the value of the property.
These assumptions are based on current market conditions.

Business park
The effective date of the valuation was 30 June 2018. The valuation was performed by and independent valuer,
Colin Douglas of Douglas Property Valuations CC.
The value was determined using the capitalised earnings method, with a capitalisation factor of 11% (2017: 11%).
At year end, the trustees believe that these valuations fairly reflect the value of the three investment properties.

Khayelitsha Retail Centre

Fair value 271,000,000   242,000,000 - -

Operating lease asset (9,472,717) (2,873,643) - -

261,527,283 239,126,357 - -
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Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

4.Investment property (continued)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for the year

Rental income from investment property 34,635,493 32,824,408 140,318 140,318

Direct operating expenses from rental generating property (16,501,230) (14,973,859) - -

18,134,263 17,850,549 140,318 140,318

Investment properties measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are categorised by level
according to the significance of the inouts used in determining the measurements.
Fair values for investment properties are calculated using the direct income capitalisation and comparable sales
methods, which results in these measurements being classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. In applying the
direct income capitalisation method the normalised income of the properties is divided by an appropriate
capitalisation rate. The comparable sales method compares the average cost per square metre of similar properties
to the subject property.
The capitalisation rate is based on actual location, size and quality of the property and takes into account any
available market data at the valuation date.
The normalised income is comprised of revenue less operating expenses adjusted for items such as management
fees, straight-line rentals and non-recurring items.
Changes in the inputs used in the fair value measurement of investment property would result in a significant
change of the fair value of investment property.

Erven 58857 and 58858 (portion of Erf 18730, Khayelitsha)

TThe fair value of the land has been determined by using comparable sales and changes in the inputs will not
significantly affect the value of the investment property.

Khayelitsha Retail Centre

If income and operating expenses were to increase/decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant, the value
of the property would have been R 17,301,559 higher/lower.
If income were to increase/decrease by 5% and operating expenses were to decrease/increase by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the value of the property would have been R 38,593,468 higher/lower.
If the capitalisation rate were to increase (decrease) by 1% with all other variables held constant, the value of the
property would have been R 39,546,420 lower (R 51,263,878 higher).

Business park

If income and operating expenses were to increase/decrease by 5% with all other variables held constant, the value
of the property would have been R 126,276 higher/lower.
If income were to increase/decrease by 5% and operating expenses were to decrease/increase by 5% with all other
variables held constant, the value of the property would have been R 183,242 higher/lower.
If the capitalisation rate were to increase (decrease) by 1% with all other variables held constant, the value of the
property would have been R 252,552 lower (R 210,460 higher).
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4. Investment property (continued)

Investment properties were valued on a highest and best use basis. For all the group’s investment properties the current use 
is considered to be the highest and best use.

Reconciliation of the balance of investment property between fair value adjustments and income from operating lease 
assets:

Purchase price of investment property 95,161,051 95,093,096 1,634,196 1,634,196

Fair value adjustment on investment property 237,866,232 215,333,261 67,365,804 67,365,804

Operating lease asset - note 6 9,472,717 2,873,643 - -

342,500,000 313,300,000 69,000,000 69,000,000

5. Interest in subsidiary

Name of company %
holding

2018

%
holding

2017

Carrying
amount 

2018

Carrying
amount 2017

KBD Management Proprietary Limited 100.00 % 100.00 % 100 100

The carrying amount of the shares in the subsidiary is shown at cost

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

6. Other financial assets
 
Loans to group companies
FirstRand Bank Limited 183,450 4,147,758              - -

The loan is unsecured and bears
interest at the prime lending rate less 5
percent. There are no fixed terms of
repayment.
The loan has been ceded in favour of
FirstRand Bank Limited as security for
borrowing facilities granted to KBD
Retail Properties Proprietary Limited.
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Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

KBD Management Proprietary Limited - - 20,897,449 -

The receivable is interest free,
unsecured and repayable on demand.
The amount owing in respect of the
contingent rental has been subordinated
by Khayelitsha Community Trust in
favour of other creditors until such time
as the company’s assets, fairly valued,
exceed its liabilities.

183,450 4,147,758 20,897,449 -

Non-current assets
Loans and receivables

Current assets
Loans and receivables

-

183,450

-

4,147,758

20,897,449

-

-

-

183,450 4,147,758 20,897,449 -

Fair values of other financial asset  
The fair values of the receivables cannot be reliably measured as there is uncertainty as to the timing of the
future cash flows.

Loans and receivables impaired

As of 30 June 2018, loans and receivables in the trust of R 1,233,966 (2017: R 1,233,966) were impaired and
provided for.  The amount of the provision in the trust was R 1,233,966 as of 30 June 2018 (2017: R 1,233,966).

Credit quality of other financial asset

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
historical information about counterparty default rates.

7. Operating lease - Khayelitsha Retail Centre

Non-current assets 7,893,130 2,809,785 354,217 395,380

Current assets 1,579,586 117,251 41,164 33,273

Non-current liabilities - (53,395) - -

9,472,716 2,873,641 395,381 428,653

The difference between the amounts recognised as rental income received on a straight-line basis over the lease term 
and the contractual income is recognised as an operating lease asset.
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2018 2017 2018 2017

- - 1,105,994 1,062,240

  

  The loan is unsecured and interest free.
  There are no fixed terms of repayment.
  Due to the short term nature of the loan,
  the fair value approximates carrying
  value.
   
 KBD Housing Proprietary Limited
  The loan is unsecured and interest free.
  There are no fixed terms of repayment.
  Due to the short term nature of the loan,
  the fair value approximates carrying
  value.
  The loan has been subordinated by
  Khayelitsha Community Trust in favour
  of other creditors until such time that the
  company’s assets, fairly valued, exceed
  its liabilities.
  
  Impairment of loans to subsidiaries

Credit quality of loans to group companies

The credit quality of loans to group companies 
that are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to historical information 
about counterparty default rates.

Fair value of loans to group companies

The fair value of the loans cannot be reliably 
determined as there is uncertainty as to the 
timing of the future cash flows.

8. Loans to (from) group companies

Subsidiaries
KBD Management Proprietary Limited       
The loan is unsecured and interest free.
There are no fixed terms of repayment.
Due to the short term nature of the loan,
the fair value approximates carrying
value.
The loan has been subordinated by
Khayelitsha Community Trust in favour
of other creditors until such time as the
company’s assets, fairly valued, exceed
it’s liabilities.

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary 
        465,157 460,640

868,368 648,329

-

--

- - 2,439,519 2,171,209

- - (1,974,361) (1,710,568)

- - 465,158 460,641
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Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

8. Loans to group companies (continued)
The amount of the provision was R 1,974,361 (2017: R 1,710,568) 
as of 30 June 2018.

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of loans to group companies

Opening balance - - 1,710,568 1,380,829

Provision for impairment - - 263,793 329,739

- - 1,974,361 1,710,568

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The 
group does not hold any collateral as security.

9. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables 443,884 960,232 588,125 588,125

Trade receivables - contingent rentals - - 6,000,000 26,924,616

Prepayments 328,380 451,498 54,153 47,118

Deposits 226,178 217,178 48,639 39,639

VAT refund due 2,413,069 3,529,500 395,555 -

City of Cape Town for water and sewerage - 28,489 124,555 28,489

overcharges

Recovery of municipal charges from tenants 1,958,199 1,180,642 - -

5,369,710 6,367,539 7,211,027 27,627,987

Credit quality of trade and other receivables    

The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past nor due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates.

Fair value of trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are carried at amortised cost with fair value approximated by such carrying value.

The amount owing in respect of the contingent rental has been subordinated by Khayelitsha Community Trust in
favour of other creditors of KBD Management Proprietary Limited until such time as the company’s assets, fairly
valued, exceed its liabilities. 
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9.Trade and other receivables impaired

Trade and other receivables which are less than 4 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 30 June
2018, R - (2017: R -) were past due but not impaired relating to the trust. At 30 June 2018, R 191,161 (2017: R
191.797) were past due but not impaired relating to the group.

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:

1 month past due 41,160 71,296 - -

   2 months past due          - -

     3 months past due      

 

10. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 2,463 2,463 2,463 2,463

Current account (interest bearing) 5,497,215 1,015,590 353,928 1,014,698

Call account - 2,771,878 - -

Debt reserve account
Bank overdraft                                                                                  

785
(553)

1,816,850 - -

5,499,910 5,606,781 356,391 1,017,161

Current assets
Current liabilities                                                                                

5,500,463 
(553)         

1,816,850
-

- -
-

5,499,910 5,606,781 356,391 1,017,161

Cash and cash equivalents held by KBD Retail Proprietary Limited amount to R 4,951,147 (2017: R 4,588,728)
have been ceded in favour of FirstRand Bank Limited as security for borrowing facilities granted to KBD Retail
Properties Proprietary Limited.

Credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can be regarded at
the highest rating due to the group using reputable bankers.
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 36,722 29,593

66,371 28,900 - -

46,908 62,009 - -4 months past due

Trade and other receivables impaired

As of 30 June 2018, trade and other receivables of R 100,000 (2017: R -) were impaired and provided for.
The amount of the provision was R 100,000 as of 30 June 2018 (2017: R -).
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11. Retained income

Balance resulting from investment property
valuations

215,333,261 204,766,523 67,365,804 67,365,804

Balance resulting from operating profit 14,754,693 25,039,136 11,222,514 27,911,616

Opening balance 230,087,954 229,805,659 78,588,318 95,277,420

Increase during the year due to investment
property valuation

22,532,971 10,566,738 - -

Increase/(decrease) during the year due to
operating profit

25,738,447 (10,284,443) 10,909,188 (16,689,102)

Closing balance resulting from investment
property valuations

237,866,232 215,333,261 67,365,804 67,365,804

Closing balance resulting from operating profit 40,493,140 14,754,693 22,131,702 11,222,514

Closing balance 278,359,372 230,087,954 89,497,506 78,588,318

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

12. Other financial liabilities

Held at amortised cost

FirstRand Bank Limited 51,023,719 63,990,961 - -

The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 11.9% (2017: 
11.9%) per annum and is repayable in monthly 
instalments ranging between R 595,721 and R 2,034,764 
over 15 years from inception and is expected to 
be repaid on 30 April 2020. The loan is secured by 
investment property with book value of R 261,527,282 
(2017: R 239,126,357) as well as a cession of all current 
and future receivables, revenues and cash balances 
due to KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited.

The loan is further secured by a pledge in favour 
of FirstRand Bank Limited of shares held by KBD 
Management Proprietary Limited in KBD Retail Properties 
Proprietary Limited and by the loan receivable from 
FirstRand Bank Limited.

The fair value of the loan is approximated by its amortised 
cost as it bears interest at market- related rates.
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12. Other financial liabilities (Continued)

FirstRand Bank Limited

The loan is secured by a cession of the rights of KBD 
Management Proprietary Limited flowing from the 
resolution taken by Khayelitsha Community Trust in 
terms of which KBD Management Proprietary Limited is 
permitted to take occupation of the project land. The 
loan bears interest at the prime rate and is repayable on 
demand.

Due to the short-term nature of the loan, the fair value 
approximates carrying value.

The City of Cape Town

The liability bears interest at 10% (2017: 10%) per annum. 
The original capital of R 1,420,290 is repayable in annual 
instalments of R 78,905 together with any interest due for 
the year commencing on November 2007, with the final 
payment on 31 December 2025.

The fair value of the loan is approximated by its amortised 
cost as it bears interest at market- related rates.

987,137 1,066,042 987,137 1,066,042

58,509,134 70,927,713 987,137 1,066,042

Non-current liabilities

At amortised cost

Non-current liabilities

At amortised cost                                                                  22,478,273            18,916,857             78,905              78,905                                                                                                                         

58,509,134 70,927,713 987,137 1,066,042

The fair value of the loan is approximated by its amortised 
cost as it bears interest at market-related rates.

 

36,030,861 52,010,856 908,232 987,137

6,498,278 5,870,710 - -
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13. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability

Operating lease adjustments (2,652,361) (842,896) - -

Prepaid expenses (73,320)
455,829

-
-

-
-

-
-

Total deferred tax liability (2,269,852) (842,896) - -

Deferred tax asset
The deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liability relate 
to income tax in the same jurisdiction, and the law allows
net settlement. Therefore, they have been offset in the 
statement of financial position as follows:

Deferred tax liability (2,269,852) (842,896) - -

Reconciliation of deferred tax liability

At beginning of year (842,896) (984,438) - -

Reversing temporary difference
taxable income

(13,688) 78,582 - -

Reversing temporary difference on operating
lease asset

(1,847,741) 108,163 - -

Originating temporary difference on prepaid
expenses
Income recived in advance

434,473

(2,269,852)

(45,203)

(842,896)

- -

14.  Trade and other payables

Trade payables 366,749 171,397 5,679,227 171,411

Income received in advance 1,471,888 (14,217) - -

VAT - 3,742,281 - 3,378,188

Retention fee payable 156,074 357,576 - 193,416

USDG refund - City of Cape Town
Payable to City of Cape Town

-
1,986,818

13,668,095
-

-
1,986,818

13,668,095
-

Accrued expenses 4,697,195 2,413,520 - -

Deposits received 1,767,469 1,601,134 - -

Other payables 507,166 - 101,743 71,689

10,953,359 21,939,786 7,767,788 17,482,799

Fair value of trade and other payables    

Trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost, with the fair value being approximated by such carrying value.

Prepaid expenses
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 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

15.  Revenue

Contingent rental income - - 3,042,833 768,922

Rental income 34,635,493 32,824,408 140,318 140,318

Straight-line lease adjustment 6,599,075 (522,994) - -

Operating costs recovered 12,021,574 9,356,880 - -

2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

55,256,142 43,658,294 5,183,151 2,909,240

16. Other operating income

Retention fee reversal 193,416 - 193,416 -

Reversal of the USDG grant accrual 11,681,277 - 11,681,277 -

Correction of tax and VAT due to VDP
ther income

2,684,508
135,168

-
11,857

445,006
1,382,643

-
1,072,234

14,694,369 11,857 13,702,342 1,072,234

17. Operating profit(loss)

Operating profit (loss) for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others:

Auditor’s remuneration - internal and external

Audit fees - external 724,043 798,694 600,468 551,700

3,858,362 3,654,381 545,802 838,702

4,094,980 4,568,020 4,288,218 4,400,107

400,226 366,675 400,225 366,674

20,010 16,074 20,010 16,074

Remuneration, other than to employees

Employee costs

Leases

Operating lease charges

Depreciation and amortisation

Consulting and professional services

Salaries, bonuses and other benefits

Premises

Depreciation of property, plant and

Grant funding - City of Cape Town
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17.Operating profit (loss) (continued)

Other

Allowance for impairment of trade and
other receivables

100,000 - - -

Consulting fees - Development fees 477,599 2,218,486 4,495 226,388

Legal fees 1,698,930 1,044,272 43,278 227,727

Repairs and maintenance 1,336,382 2,021,714 13,748 16,160

USDG grant refund accrual - 11,681,277 - 11,681,277

Rates 13,278,757 2,090,347 2,580 2,061

Security 3,261,576 3,118,532 7,647 6,979

Trustees fees 836,209 555,418 836,209 555,418

Utilities - Electricity 6,056,159 6,001,212 63,807 62,991

Utilities - Sewerage & Refuse 1,302,808 837,418 - -

Utilities - Water 1,020,432 1,020,432 - -

Net gains (losses) on financial instruments

Loans and receivables 377,203 889,052 - -

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (7,800,074) (9,061,793) (165,796) (86,796)

18. Investment income

Interest income

Tenant deposits 79,464 101,481 - -

Debit loan - FirstRand Bank 49,394 272,112 - -

Debt reserve account 113,457 97,012 - -

SARS - 125,613 - -

Bank balances 62,818 258,679 62,818 258,679

Overdue tenant accounts 72,070 159,768 - -

377,203 1,014,665 62,818 258,679

19. Finance costs

Other financial liabilities 7,800,074 9,061,793 165,796 86,796

Late payment of taxes 199,406 849,172 - 434,704

Total costs 7,999,480 9,910,965 165,796 521,500

20. Fair value adjustments

Khayelitsha Retail Centre 22,332,971 10,366,738 - -

Erf 75008, Khayelitsha 200,000 200,000 - -

22,532,971 10,566,738 - 10,000,000
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21. Taxation 

Major components of the tax expense (income) 

Current

Local income tax - current period 3,960,268 3,283,850 - 321,889

Local income tax - recognised in current tax for prior 
periods

- 413,203 - -

3,960,268 3,697,053 - -

Deferred

Originating and reversing temporary differences 1,426,955 (141,541) - -

5,387,223 3,555,512 - -

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Reconciliation between applicable tax rate and average effective tax rate.

Applicable tax rate 28.00 % 28.00 % 28.00 % 28.00 %

Exempt income (10.10)% (18.86)% (44.92)% (5.73)%

Fair value adjustment
None Taxable income

(11.76)%
(0.63)%

(61.01)%
- %

- %
- %

-%
- %

Disallowable charges 5.59 % 143.60 % 20.08 % (21.87)%

Prior period under-assessment (0.04)% 2.23 % - % - %

Tax losses not recognised
Utilisation of assessed loss
Recognised in equity

(0.34)%
(0.18)%
(0.50)%

-%
- %

(1.32)%

-%
(0.73)%
(2.43)%

-%
-%

(0.40)%

10.04 % 92.64 % - % - %

No provision has been made for 2018 tax as the trust has no taxable income and no income relating to public benefit 
organisation activities.

22. Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Profit before taxation 53,658,641 3,837,807 10,909,188 (16,689,102)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 20,010 16,074 20,010 16,074

Interest income (377,203) (1,014,665) (62,818) (258,679)

Finance costs 7,999,480 9,910,965 165,796 521,500

Fair value gains (22,532,971) (10,566,738) - -

Impairment losses and reversals 100,000 - 263,793 329,739

Movements in operating lease assets and (6,599,075) 522,995 33,272 25,384

accruals

Non cash SARS interest 95,753 497,483 - 434,700

Non cash tax adjustment (1,198,087) - - -

Non cash VAT adjustment (1,041,415) - - -

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables 1,939,244 (945,156) (480,489) 613,661

Trade and other payables (10,986,427) 15,335,859 (9,715,011) 11,878,957

21,077,950 17,594,624 1,133,741 (3,127,766
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23. Tax paid 

Balance at beginning of the year (5,703,034) (2,615,171) (1,476,690) (1,404,451)

Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss (3,960,268) (3,697,053) - -

SARS interest and penalties
Non cash tax correction

(95,752)
1,198,087

(497,483)
-

-
-

(434,700)
-

Balance at end of the year 3,548,599 5,703,034 160,323 1,476,690

(5,012,368) (1,106,673) (1,316,367) (362,461)

24. Commitments

Operating leases – as lessee (expense)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 383,348 164,517 383,348 164,517

- in second to fifth year inclusive 598,923 18,523 598,923 18,523

982,271 183,040 982,271 183,040

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the trust for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated 
for an average term of two years. No contingent rent is payable.

Operating leases – as lessor (income)

Minimum lease payments due

- within one year 33,750,575 30,782,221 181,482 173,591

- in second to fifth year inclusive 60,559,430 104,621,295 804,831 773,269

- later than five years 5,613,996 9,656,272 449,759 662,802

99,924,001 145,059,788 1,436,072 1,609,662

Group income

Operating lease receipts represent rental receivables by KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited for retail space in the 
Khayelitsha Retail Centre.

Trust income

Operating lease receipts represent rental receivable by the trust on land leased to KBD Management Proprietary Limited. 
The trust has leased the land to KBD Management Proprietary Limited since 07 March 2005.

Contingent rental income - - 3,042,833 768,922
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25. Related parties 

Relationships

Direct subsidiary KBD Management Proprietary Limited

Indirect subsidiaries KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited 

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited

Key management M X Gaula (CEO)

S B Titus-Nabe (CFO)
T Jemsana (Development Manager)

F Sulaiman (Property Portfolio Manager)

Non-executive trustees B Belu-Toni
M Maxongo
A C Coombe
N  L  Tyhido
P  Makeleni
F Mpetha
S Jozi
Z A Mbalo
R Dyantyi

Details of transactions and balances occurring between the trust and related parties are presented below. 

Intragroup transactions have been eliminated on consolidation and are not presented in the group figures.

Related party balances

Loan accounts - Owing (to) by related parties

KBD Management Proprietary Limited - - 1,105,994 1,062,240

KBD Management Proprietary Limited - - (1,105,994) (1,062,240)

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited - - 868,368 648,329

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited - Impairment
KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited

- - (868,368)
465,157

(648,329)
460,640

- - 465,157 460,640

Amounts included in trade receivables regarding 
related parties

KBD Management Proprietary Limited - - 6,000,000 26,924,616

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited - - 1,233,966 1,233,966

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited - Impairment - - (1,233,966) (1,233,966)

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited - - 588,125 588,125

- - 6,588,125 27,512,741

Impairment

95



INTEGRATED REPORT 2018

96

Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

25. Related parties (continued)

Amounts included in trade payables
regarding related parties

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited - - 5,318,019 -

  KBD Housing Proprietary Limited   - - 101,743 71,689

5,419,762 71,689

Amounts included in other financial

assets regarding related parties

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited - - 20,897,449 -

Related party transactions
Contingent rent received from related
parties

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited

Rent received from related parties

KBD Housing Proprietary Limited                                                                                                                                  

- - 3,042,833 768,922

- - 140,318 140,318

Other income received from related
parties

KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited  

 

- - 1,382,643 1,060,377

Key management personnel and
trustee compensation

Trustees' Fees 836,209 555,418 836,209 555,418

Employee costs and benefits 3,298,323 3,403,542 3,298,323 3,403,542

4,134,532 3,958,960 4,134,532 3,958,960

20,897,449 ---
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26. Financial assets by category 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group - 2018

Loans and
receivables

Total

Trade and other receivables 2,628,262 2,628,262

Other financial assets 183,450 183,450

Cash and cash equivalents 5,500,463 5,500,463

8,312,175 8,312,175

Group - 2017

Loans and
receivables

Total

Trade and other receivables 2,386,541 2,386,541

Other financial assets 4,147,758 4,147,758

Cash and cash equivalents 5,606,781 5,606,781

12,141,080 12,141,080

Trust - 2018

Loans and
receivables

Total

Loans to group companies 465,158 465,158

Trade and other receivables
Other financial assets

6,761,319
20,897,449

6,761,319
20,897,449

Cash and cash equivalents 356,391 356,391

28,480,317 28,480,317

Trust - 2017

Loans and
receivables

Total

Loans to group companies 460,640 460,640

Trade and other receivables 31,719,821 31,719,821

Cash and cash equivalents 1,017,161 1,017,161

33,197,622 33,197,622
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27. Financial liabilities by category 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:

Group - 2018

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Total

Borrowings 58,509,134 58,509,134

Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft

9,481,471
553

9,481,471
553

67,991,158 67,991,158

Group - 2017

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Total

Other financial liabilities 70,927,714 70,927,714

Trade and other payables 18,211,723 18,211,723

89,139,437 89,139,437

Trust - 2018

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Total

Borrowings 987,137 987,137

Trade and other payables 7,767,788 7,767,788

8,754,925 8,754,925

Trust - 2017 Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost

Total

Other financial liabilities 1,066,042 1,066,042

Trade and other payables 14,104,610 14,104,610

15,170,652 15,170,652
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28. Risk management  

Capital risk management

The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings (excluding derivative financial liabilities) 
disclosed in notes 8 & 12, cash and cash equivalents disclosed in note 10, and equity as disclosed in the statement of 
financial position.

The trust’s objective of capital management is to enable it to obtain the highest return with an acceptable level of risk.

Financial risk management

The group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, 
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

There have been no changes to the group’s overall risks or financial risk management objectives, policies and processes 
from the previous period.

Liquidity risk

The group’s risk to liquidity is a result of the obligations associated with financial liabilities and funds available to cover 
those obligations. The group manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

The table below analyses the group’s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Group

At 30 June 2018 Less than 
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 27,825,008 22,656,140 17,295,089 449,759

Trade and other payables 9,481,471 - - -

At 30 June 2017 Less than 
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 25,943,252 21,326,730 39,739,186 662,802

Trade and other payables 18,211,723 - - -

Trust

At 30 June 2018 Less than 
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 181,482 189,372 615,459 449,759

Trade and other payables 7,767,788 - - -

At 30 June 2017 Less than 
1 year

Between 1
and 2 years

Between 2
and 5 years

Over 
5 years

Borrowings 173,591 181,482 591,788 662,802

Trade and other payables 14,104,610 - - -
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28. Risk management (continued) 

Interest rate risk

The group’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings issued at variable interest rates.

At 30 June 2018, if interest rates on Rand-denominated borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year and equity would have been R 5,863 (2017: R 27,964) (Trust R
2,566 (2017: R 7,324)) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expense and income on borrowings
and receivables.

Credit risk

Credit risk exists mainly due to cash deposits, cash equivalents, loans and receivables and trade debtors.

The group only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-
party.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. In KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited the asset manager 
evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are 
used.

Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its 
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in 
accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.

Foreign exchange risk

The group does not operate internationally and is not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

29. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2018, the trust earned a profit in the current year of R 10,909,188

(2017: loss of R 16,689,102). Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries current liabilities exceeded its

current assets by R 24,347,575 and that it earned a profit of R 48,271,418 (2017: R 282,295) for the same period.

The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to

a going concern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the

realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary

course of business.

The ability of the trust to continue as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these 
are:

•  KBD Retail Properties Proprietary Limited is continuing to generate positive operating cash flows for the

      Khayelitsha Retail Centre valued at R 271,000,000 (2017: R 242,000,000) at year end.

• KBD Housing Proprietary Limited has commenced its housing development project. The bulk

      infrastructure phase and the internal services development have been completed.

• The investment properties held by Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries have been revalued

      upwards by R 22,532,971 (2017: R 10,566,738).
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

30. Capital commitment  

Acquisition of land 2,000,000 2,000,000 - -

Less deposit paid (200,000) (200,000) - -

1,800,000 1,800,000 - -

To be funded through the Joint Venture Partner's financial obligation.

31.  Contingent liabilities

City of Cape Town

USDG grant waiver 11,681,277 7,489,766 11,681,277 7,489,766

During the current year the City of Cape Town confirmed that the repayment of the USDG grant funding would no
longer be required subject to the completion of the BNG Housing project. The City of Cape Town confirmed their
satisfaction over the progress in respect of the BNG Housing project.

There is a possibility that the USDG grant waiver may ultimately be recalled by the City of Cape Town should the
BNG Housing project not be completed. In this regard, the possibility that an outflow may occur is not considered to
be remote.

Arbitration with The Spar Group Limited

Initial arbitration costs - 699,682 - -

Appeal costs - 274,337 - -

974,019 - -

Arbitration was finalised in the current year and the amount due to The Spar Group Limited was raised as an
accrual in the current year. The amount that was raised as an accrual is an amount of R 711,088.

32. Events after reporting period
IIn the prior year, a provision for the repayment of the USDG funding to the City of Cape Town was raised due to the 
change in the housing typology that was envisaged at the time for the 368 units for Phase 1. The Khayelitsha Community 
Trust has subsequently changed the housing typology from GAP units to BNG units. The 368 units for Phase 1 relating to 
the BNG Housing project are to be delivered as an institutional subsidy housing product which will allow for the waiver of 
the repayment of USDG funding by Khayelitsha Community Trust. The City of Cape Town is to determine how the land sale 
deposit for 10 hectares that has been paid is to be treated as only four out of the 10 hectares are to be transferred to the 
Trust.

In 2016, Khayelitsha Community Trust Group (KCT) sought legal advice on the best structure to implement in the 
anticipation of having any third party investing in one of the entities of KCT Group for purposes of strengthening the 
liquidity of the KCT Group in the long term, as well as improving the current group structure. The restructure is important to 
address the current structure where the underlying land of the KCT Mall is owned by a separate group entity whereas the 
leasehold improvements are owned by this company.

KCT Group has commenced with implementing the legal advice which outcome will be incorporating a new entity as a
subsidiary of KBD Management, namely KBD Retail Holdings. KBD Retail Holdings, through asset-for-share and intragroup 
transactions will ultimately hold the land, the rental enterprise and the buildings that are currently held in KCT and KBD 
Retail respectively.
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The previously issued financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, on which we issued an auditor’s report dated 
16 November 2018, have been revised and reissued. The audit report page numbers referring to the audited consolidated 
and separate financial statements presented in the integrated report were not correct. The audit report page numbers in 
the integrated report referred to pages 10 to 49, and should have read pages 67 to 101.
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Detailed Income Statement

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

Revenue

Contingent rental income - - 3,042,833 768,922

Rental income 34,635,493 32,824,408 140,318 140,318

Grant funding - City of Cape Town 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Straight-line lease adjustment 6,599,075 (522,994 - -

Operating costs recovered 12,021,574 9,356,880 - -

55,256,142 43,658,294 5,183,151 2,909,240

Other operating income

Other income 135,168 11,857 1,382,643 1,072,234

Reversal of the USDG accrual 11,681,277 - 11,681,277 -

Correction of tax and VAT due to VDP 2,684,508 - 445,006 -

Retention fee reversal 193,416 - 193,416 -

14,694,369 11,857 13,702,342 1,072,234

Expenses (Refer to page 52) (31,202,564) (41,502,782) (7,873,327) (20,407,755)

Operating profit (loss) 38,747,947 2,167,369 11,012,166 (16,426,281)

Investment income 377,203 1,014,665 62,818 258,679

Finance costs (7,999,480) (9,910,965) (165,796) (521,500)

Fair value gains 22,532,971 10,566,738 - -

Taxation
53,658,641
(5,387,223)

3,837,807
(3,555,512)

10,909,188
-

(16,689,102)
-

Profit (loss) for the year 48,271,418 282,295 10,909,188 (16,689,102)

Profit (loss) before taxation

Other non-operating gains (losses)

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the consolidated annual financial statements
 and is unaudited
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Khayelitsha Community Trust and its Subsidiaries 
(Registration number T3011/2003)
Consolidated Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
Detailed Income Statement

 Group  Trust

Figures in Rand                                                                                 2018 2017 2018 2017

Other operating expenses

Advertising 357,052 532,916 167,168 532,916

Allowance for impairment debtors 100,000 - - -

Auditors fees - internal and external auditors 724,043 798,694 600,468 551,700

Bad debts - 30,001 - -

Bank charges 50,064 10,570 5,376 5,044

Cleaning 969,117 819,616 - -

Commission paid 88,476 1,217,173 - -

Community liason services 338,750 334,700 120,000 240,000

Computer expenses 77,476 27,672 6,527 27,672

Conference expenses 94,474 101,021 94,474 101,021

Consulting fees 1,644,514 2,218,486 4,495 226,388

Consumables 12,996 39,924 - -

Correction of VAT balance 963,364 - - -

Depreciation 20,010 16,074 20,010 16,074

Donations 2,150 2,000 2,150 2,000

Employee costs 4,094,980 4,568,020 4,288,218 4,400,107

Entertainment 40,640 36,995 40,640 36,995

Fines and penalties 95,231 281,879 - -

Impairment - - 263,793 329,739

Insurance 337,870 421,252 140,006 128,000

Lease rentals on operating lease 400,226 366,675 400,225 366,674

Legal fees 1,698,930 1,044,272 43,278 227,727

Payroll services 16,403 17,388 16,403 17,388

Postage 66,035 42,798 66,035 42,798

Printing and stationery 64,884 194,025 54,722 187,767

Promotions - Retail Centre 279,999 297,298 - -

Property management - Letting commission 385,436 482,837 - -

Public relations - 99,137 - 99,137

Rates 3,278,757 2,090,347 2,580 2,061

Repairs and maintenance 1,336,382 2,021,714 13,748 16,160

Repayment of USDG grant accrual - 11,681,277 - 11,681,277

Reversal of take on balance 302,741 - - -

Secretarial, accounting and taxation services 514,918 391,623 498,029 384,587
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Security 3,261,576 3,118,532 7,647 6,979

Sundry expenses 198,388 153,609 42,721 73,143

Telephone and fax 89,338 93,368 40,368 35,732

Training 21,949 39,336 16,389 39,336

Travel - local 18,104 10,924 17,841 10,924

Trustees' fees 836,209 555,418 836,209 555,418

Utilities - Electricity 6,056,159 6,001,212 63,807 62,991

Utilities - Meter reading 41,683 38,418 - -

Utilities - Refuse and sewerage 1,302,808 837,418 - -

Utilities - Water 1,020,432 468,163 - -

31,202,564 41,502,782 7,873,327 20,407,755

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the consolidated annual financial statements
 and is unaudited
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BNG     Breaking New Grounds  

CBD   Central Business District

CEO      Chief Executive Officer

CoCT /The City   City of Cape Town

CSI     Corporate Social Investment

CTCHC    Cape Town Community Housing Company

CCTV   Closed Circuit Television

DBSA   Development Bank of South Africa

DFI   Development Finance Institute

DMU    Development Management Unit

DOC    Department of Coffee

ED   Essor Developments

EXCO   Executive Committee

FPB    Film and Publication Board

GCIS     Government Communication and Information System

GBD      German Development Bank

GLA      Gross Lettable Area

GRAP     General Recognised Accounting Practice

HR   Human Resources

IDP   Integrated Development Plan

IFRS    International Financial Reporting Standards

IT   Information Technology

JV    Joint Venture

KBD                                    Khayelitsha Business District

KBD    Khayelitsha Business Development

KDF     Khayelitsha Development Forum

KENTREPRENEURS   Khayelitsha Business District Entrepreneurs

KHOUSING    Khayelitsha Business District Housing

KING III   King Report on Governance for South Africa

KMANCO   Khayelitsha Business District Management (Pty) Ltd

KRetail     Khayelitsha Business District Retail Properties (Pty) Ltd

LAA    Land Availability Agreement

MOU     Memorandum of Understanding

MSA      Municipal System Act

MURP     Mayoral Urban Regeneration Programme

NAFCOC       National African Federated Chamber of Commerce

NEF     National Empowerment Fund

NGO    Non-Governmental Organisation

NHBRC     National Home Builder Registration Council

NHFC   National Housing Finance Corporation

NPO   Non-Profit Organisation

PBO   Public Benefit Organisatiion

PEPCO   Planning & Environmental Portfolio Committee

PRASA    Passenger Rail Agency of South Africa

PR    Public Relations

RMB   Rand Merchant Bank

SARCC   South Africa Rail Commuter Corporation

SCM   Supply Chain Management

SDF   Spatial Development Framework

TOR   Terms of Reference

UDF   Urban Design Framework

URP   Urban Renewal Project

USDG     Urban Settlements Development Grant

GLOSSARY
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CONTACT

Bellville Office
Office 3, Ground Floor, Old Dutch Square 
c/o Bill Bezuidenhout and Old Paarl Road
Bellville, 7535

PO Box 1509
Bellville, 7535

Tel: 021 949 7741/2
Fax: 021 949 7747

Satellite Office
Zenzele Training Centre
c/o Spine and Lwandle Road
Khayelitsha, 7784

Tel: 021 361 6717
Fax: 021 361 0911

KCT Mall Centre Managers Office
Corner of Julius Tsolo Road and 
Nomzamo Ngoma, Khayelitsha, 7784

Tel: 021 361 4631
Fax: 086 760 6470

Website: www.kctrust.org
Email:     info@kctrust.org

NPO: 123-642-NPO
PBO: 930 029 783

Images supplied by: Luzuko Tyala and Bruce Sutherland
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